
Mayor 
David Allison 

Council Members 
Tom Bailer 
Cathy Sherman 
Kasey Kinsman 
Wendy Ranney 
David Zastrow 
Kristin Smith 
Ken Jones 

City Manager 
Samantha 
Greenwood 

City Clerk 
Susan Bourgeois 

Deputy City Clerk 
Colette Gilmour 

Regular City Council Meeting
November 20, 2024 @ 7:00pm 
Cordova Center Comm Rooms 

A. Call to order

B. Invocation, pledge of allegiance
I pledge allegiance to the Flag of the United 
States of America, and to the republic for 
which it stands, one Nation under God, 
indivisible with liberty and justice for all.  

C. Roll call
Mayor David Allison, Council members
Tom Bailer, Cathy Sherman, Kasey
Kinsman, Wendy Ranney, David Zastrow,
Kristin Smith, and Ken Jones

D. Approval of Regular Agenda……....…………………………………………….... (voice vote) 

E. Disclosures of Conflicts of Interest and Ex Parte Communication
• conflicts as defined in Cordova Municipal Code 3.10.010 should be declared, then Mayor rules on whether

member should be recused, Council can appeal the Mayor’s ruling
• ex parte should be declared here, the content of the ex parte should be explained when the item comes before

Council, ex parte does not recuse a member, it is required that ex parte is declared and explained

F. Communications by and Petitions from Visitors
1. Guest Speakers – Dave Reggiani, Sheridan Alpine Association……………………………….……………. (page 1) 

2023-2024 Mt. Eyak Ski Area Season Summary 
2. Audience comments regarding agenda items…………..………..…………………..………... (3 minutes per speaker) 
3. Chairpersons and Representatives of Boards and Commissions  (Hospital Board, School Board, etal)
4. Student Council Report…………………………………………………………………..…………………………… (page 28) 

G. Approval of Consent Calendar
5. Minutes:

a. Oct. 2, 2024, Regular City Council Meeting Minutes……………………………………………….…. (page 29) 

H. Approval of Minutes – in consent calendar

I. Consideration of Bids/Proposals/Contracts – none

J. Reports of Officers
6. Mayor’s Report
7. City Manager’s Report
8. City Clerk’s Report:  a. notice of upcoming board & commission vacancies…….……..………….....….. (page 33) 

K. Correspondence…………..……………….………....…..…..………..……....... (see primer for description page 34)
9. Multiple (9) Letters about Cordova Iceworm Swim Team…………………………………………………..…. (page 35) 
10. Multiple (2) Letters about Cordova Chamber of Commerce Funding…………………………………..…. (page 54) 
11. 11-12-24 Chamber of Commerce comments to AMHS regarding summer 2025 schedule………….. (page 57) 
12. 11-12-24 Email from P Kelly regarding staff comments to easement request………………………..…. (page 59) 
13. 11-13-24 Email from N Casciano regarding City budget……………………………………………..………. (page 62) 
14. 11-13-24 Guard/Hawxhurst email regarding econ dev property tax exemptions………………...….….. (page 64) 



Executive Sessions per Cordova Municipal Code 3.14.030 
• subjects which may be considered are: (1) matters the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect upon the finances of the

government; (2) subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any person; provided that the person may request a public discussion; (3)
matters which by law, municipal charter or code are required to be confidential; (4) matters involving consideration of governmental records that by law
are not subject to public disclosure.

• subjects may not be considered in the executive session except those mentioned in the motion calling for the executive session, unless
they are auxiliary to the main question

• action may not be taken in an executive session except to give direction to an attorney or labor negotiator regarding the handling of a
specific legal matter or pending labor negotiations

  Regular Meetings of the Cordova City Council are live streamed on the City’s YouTube 
or are available there for viewing or audio-only by the next business day 

L. Ordinances and Resolutions
15. Ordinance 1223……………………………………………..………………...……….…….……… (roll call vote)(page 65) 

An ordinance of the Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska establishiing economic development 
property tax exemptions related to commercial and residential development in the city and setting 
forth criteria for such exemptions in a standardized application form – 2nd reading 

16. Substitute Ordinance 1224……………………………………………..………………...…………. (voice vote)(page 83) 
An ordinance of the Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska authorizing the City Manager to enter 
into a Purchase and Sale Agreement with Paul and Linda Kelly, doing business as Bayside 
Storage, for property described as Lot 4A, North Fill Development Park Addition #2 –  1st reading 

17. Ordinance 1225……………………………………………..………………...……………..………. (voice vote)(page 112) 
An ordinance of the Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska authorizing the transfer of $289,898 
from the Permanent Fund Grant Project Fund, 104-901-57340, to the Grant Administration – 
Transfer from Permanent Fund, 401-390-49998, to pay the Second Street upgrade project and 
Whitshed pedestrian path project grant matches for FY25 –  1st reading 

M. Unfinished Business - none

N. New & Miscellaneous Business
18. Discussion of City of Cordova comments regarding Kelly access easement………………..………..... (page 114) 

request with State 
19. Pending Agenda, CIP List, Calendar, Elected & Appointed Officials lists……….................................. (page 133) 

O. Audience Participation

P. Council Comments

Q. Executive Session

The City Council is permitted to enter an executive session if an explicit motion is made to do so calling out the subject to be discussed 
and if that subject falls into one of the 4 categories noted below. Therefore, even if specific agenda items are not listed under the 
Executive Session header on the agenda, any item on the agenda may trigger discussion on that item that is appropriate for or legally 
requires an executive session. In the event executive session is appropriate or required, Council may make a motion to enter executive 
session right during debate on that agenda item or could move to do so later in the meeting. 

R. Adjournment 

 

 
 

if you have a disability that makes it difficult to attend city-sponsored functions, you may contact 907-424-6200 for assistance. 
full City Council agendas and packets available online at www.cityofcordova.net  

http://www.cityofcordova.net/


November 13, 2024 

Mayor Allison and City Council 
PO Box 1210 
Cordova, AK 99574 

Dear Mayor and Council Members, 

Thank you for the invitation to provide the 2023-24 Mt. Eyak Ski Area Season Summary at the upcoming 
November 20, 2024, City Council Meeting.  I have created a PowerPoint presentation for the meeting that 
should take about 20-30 minutes to complete, allowing some time for questions.  I’ve attached a draft 
copy of the presentation so that we could meet the deadline for inclusion within the meeting packet.  As 
you will see, the presentation also provides updates of our preseason planning for the 2024-25 season, 
which we hope arrives soon with lots of snow. 

Another update item that is not included in the presentation is that we are in the process of digitally 
archiving many of the old documents from the Sheridan Ski Club and subsequent Sheridan Alpine 
Association founders.  We are about halfway complete with the project.  Currently, the archive is stored 
in the cloud so it can be easily shared.  I plan to work with Cathy Sherman and the Cordova Historical 
Society so that many of these Cordova treasures can be shared with future generations. 

On that note, there are a couple letters that I would like to share with you, as frequently, the 
understanding of how the City of Cordova and the Sheridan Ski Club along with assistance from federal 
and state agencies brought, installed, and refurbished an original decommissioned chairlift from Sun 
Valley, Idaho.   

The first letter is a copy of SAA President Mike O’Leary’s 2/24/2000 letter to Council Member Tim Joyce. 
As you will see, Mike does an excellent job providing a history of the City of Cordova’s involvement while 
addressing a complaint of a lift ticket price increase. 

The second letter is a copy of City Manager Don Moore’s 10/20/1988 letter to the City’s attorneys 
outlining the intent of the City’s partnership with the Sheridan Ski Club to manage and operate the Mt. 
Eyak Ski Area. 

Going through all the old file boxes and documents has been quite enjoyable and very educational for me. 
I hope you find them equally as valuable and enlightening as I have.  See you at the meeting. 

Sincerely, 

David Reggiani 
President, Sheridan Alpine Association 

1



Attachments 
1. SAA President Mike O’Leary’s 2/24/2000 letter to Council Member Tim Joyce

2. City Manager Don Moore’s 10/20/1988 letter to City attorneys.

3. SAA 2023-24 Season Summary Presentation for Council’s 11/20/2024 Meeting

2



Attachment 1.

3



4



5



Attachment 2.

6



7



8



9



10



11



MT. Eyak Recreational Area – 2023-24 Season Summary

2023-24 Season Summary

Rope tow opened on 12/8 – 54 operational days
Lift opened on 12/22 – 33 operational days

Last open day was 4/5
Approximately 4 months of service

Sheridan Alpine Association Members = 461
Season Pass Holders = 403

2023-24 Photos Courtesy 
of Penny Johnson

Attachment 3.

12



MT. Eyak Recreational Area – 2023-24 Season Summary

Operational Highlights

• 12/24/2023 Windstorm derailed cable from 22 sheaves on 5 towers.

A special Thank You to David Branshaw,
Jason & Gunner Davis and Bob & Bob Jr. 
Bernard for their quick response 
and saving Christmas!

13



MT. Eyak Recreational Area – 2023-24 Season Summary

Operational Highlights

• 12/24/2023 Windstorm derailed cable from 22 sheaves on 5 towers.
• 32 hours of snow making for the bunny hill kids.
• 105 hours of trail grooming including the cross-country trail
• 4rd Year of investment into rental equipment.  A total of $94,000 over the past 5 yrs.

14



MT. Eyak Recreational Area – 2023-24 Season Summary

Operational Highlights

• Chairlift Safety Presentation at Mt. Eccles Elementary School Assembly
• SAA sponsored several guest ski patrollers from other ski areas. Great staff development 

for our ski patrol team!

15



MT. Eyak Recreational Area – 2023-24 Season Summary

Chairlift Maintenance Highlights
A bit higher than normal repair & maintenance needs year

Rebuilt or replaced 23 sheaves on 4 towers
Greased entire lift 6 times
Prepped and painted A & B-Towers

16



MT. Eyak Recreational Area – 2023-24 Season Summary

17



MT. Eyak Recreational Area – 2024-25 Preseason Planning

Mt. Eyak Ski Area News & Updates 
for the 2024-25 Season

• David Branshaw Retires after 27 years of service
• New Management Team – General Manager & Mountain Operations Manager
• Mt. Eyak Ski Area joined the Indy Pass Resorts Community
• Snowsports @ Mt. Eyak – Nordic and Alpine Ski Schools
• Dreams of a New Day Lodge

18



MT. Eyak Recreational Area – 2024-25 Preseason Planning

Your ticket to independent ski resorts
https://www.indyskipass.com/

19



MT. Eyak Recreational Area – 2024-25 Preseason Planning

FY25 Budget Details

11-13-24 Council Work Session Packet

FY23 FY24
FY24
YTD FY25

9-12-24 SAA email to City Manager & Acting Planner
SAA Fiscal Year 11/1/24 – 10/31/25
City Fiscal Year 1/1/24 – 12/31/25

20



MT. Eyak Recreational Area – 2024-25 Preseason Planning

11-13-24 Council Work Session PacketSAA Requested City Reimbursement Funding

21



MT. Eyak Recreational Area – 2024-25 Preseason Planning

22



MT. Eyak Recreational Area – 2024-25 Preseason Planning

23



MT. Eyak Recreational Area – 2024-25 Preseason Planning

24



MT. Eyak Recreational Area – 2024-25 Preseason Planning

25



MT. Eyak Recreational Area – 2024-25 Preseason Planning

Dreams of a new Day Lodge

• SAA created an Infrastructure & a New Day 
Lodge Design Committee 

• SAA has engaged Z-Architects to assist in 
preparing a preliminary conceptual design

• As the process gets going, we envision a 
series of facilitated community workshops to 
help with site development, building space 
use & design criteria

• Stay tuned for more to come …

Mt. Eyak Ski Area Planning Document circa 1970

26



MT. Eyak Recreational Area – 2024-25 Preseason Planning

Questions

27



Cordova High School Student Council Report 
for November 20, 2024, Cordova City Council Meeting 

 
 
Student council had their second meeting on Friday, Nov. 1 and worked together to plan 
the Nov. 21 pep rally and our Deck the Halls theme which will be released that day. We 
also worked to begin planning for Homecoming which will take place January 17. Student 
Council is undertaking a See's Candy fundraiser to start raising money for our travel to 
Sitka for the Spring AASG conference in April. 
 

28



 

Reg Mtg Min 
October 2, 2024   
Page 1 of 4 

Regular City Council Meeting 
October 2, 2024 @ 7:00 pm 

Cordova Center Community Rooms A & B 
Minutes 

 
A. Call to order – Mayor David Allison called the Regular City Council Meeting to order at 7:00 pm on 
October 2, 2024, in the Cordova Center Community Rooms. 
 
B. Invocation and pledge of allegiance – Mayor Allison led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
C. Roll call – Present for roll call were Mayor David Allison and Council members Kasey Kinsman, and 
Dave Zastrow. Council members Tom Bailer and Kristin Carpenter were present via zoom 
videoconference.  Council members Cathy Sherman, Wendy Ranney, and Ken Jones were absent. Also 
present were City Manager Samantha Greenwood and Public Works Director/Acting City Planner Kevin 
Johnson. 
 
D. Approval of Regular Agenda   
Hearing no objection to approval of the agenda, Mayor Allison declared it approved. 
 
E. Disclosures of Conflicts of Interest and ex parte communications - none 
 
F. Communications by and Petitions from Visitors 
1. Guest speakers - none 
2. Audience comments regarding agenda items - none 
3. Chairpersons and Representatives of Boards and Commissions - none 
4. Student Council Report – none 
 
G. Approval of Consent Calendar  
5. Minutes: Sept 18, 2024, City Council Public Hearing Minutes 
6. Per Charter Section 2-8 and Cordova Municipal Code 3.12.022, recordation of excused absence of 
Council member Dave Zastrow from the Sept 18, 2024, Regular Meeting 
Vote on the Consent Calendar: 4 yeas, 0 nays, 3 absent. Zastrow-yes; Sherman-absent; Jones-absent; 
Bailer-yes; Kinsman-yes; Ranney-absent; and Carpenter-yes. Consent Calendar was approved. 
 
H. Approval of Minutes – in consent calendar 
 
I. Consideration of Bids/Proposals/Contracts - none 
 
J. Reports of Officers  
7. Mayor’s Report – Mayor Allison reported: 1) He has to go to Anchorage, so Vice Mayor Kinsman is 
going to welcome Pioneers coming for convention and fill in for him at the ribbon cutting at pool. 
8. City Manager’s Report – Greenwood reported: 1) the city deficit cannot be determined until budget is 
done; the $3 million loan from permanent fund and $3.9 million from the general fund, that was discussed 
at the last work session is a cash flow issue; two separate things not considered a deficit. They are 
correcting the cash flow issue during this time frame; 2) work session schedule goal to get budget passed 
on Dec 4, Nov 27 the public hearing would need to be advertised; 3) would like to look at other entities the 
city gives money to next work session; 4) Cordova Center has already met their revenue goal for the year, 
3 large conferences also coming up; 5) Parks and Rec director, Duncan Chisholm has resigned, last day 
Oct 11, filled interim with Samantha Schneider; 6) three applications for the planner position, hired a new 
Deputy Clerk, hired a new utilities clerk, dmv candidate is going though background check, officer 

29



 

Reg Mtg Min 
October 2, 2024   
Page 2 of 4 

candidate going through background check, hired museum clerk and head librarian, four applicants for the 
fire/medic position, streets supervisor still needed. 
9. City Clerk’s Report - Bourgeois was not present. 1) Many positions open for boards & commissions; 
2) second October regular council meeting is being pushed one week to Oct 23. 
 
K. Correspondence  
10. 09-17-24 Letter from Sr. VP External Affairs of Santos Ltd introducing Santos to the community 
11. 09-17-24 Email from K. Hayden regarding disposal of Lots 3 & 4, Block 8 Original Townsite 
 
L. Ordinances and Resolutions  
12. Ordinance 1221 An ordinance of the Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska enacting Chapter 5.01 
“disbursement and investment of city funds”; amending and renaming Chapter 5.04 “warrants” to “signature 
requirements” and clarifying the signature process on City fund disbursements; amending, renumbering, 
and renaming Chapter 5.44 “Cordova general reserve fund” to Chapter 5.02 “Cordova permanent fund 
(general reserve fund)”; repealing Chapter 5.40 “sales tax” and enacting Chapter 5.10 “sales tax” to adopt 
a registration process for sellers; update the sales tax return, implementation, enforcement, protest, and 
collection procedures;  remove the sales tax exemptions for travel agencies, professional services 
commissions and fees, and recreational flights; to clarify the exemption for nonprofit entities and expressly 
exclude rentals from the exemption; and to require purchasers to file a refund application for the sales tax 
exemption on construction materials and services – 1st reading 
M/Kinsman S/Zastrow to adopt Ordinance 1221 An ordinance of the Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska 
enacting Chapter 5.01 “disbursement and investment of city funds”; amending and renaming Chapter 5.04 
“warrants” to “signature requirements” and clarifying the signature process on City fund disbursements; 
amending, renumbering, and renaming Chapter 5.44 “Cordova general reserve fund” to Chapter 5.02 
“Cordova permanent fund (general reserve fund)”; repealing Chapter 5.40 “sales tax” and enacting Chapter 
5.10 “sales tax” to adopt a registration process for sellers; update the sales tax return, implementation, 
enforcement, protest, and collection procedures;  remove the sales tax exemptions for travel agencies, 
professional services commissions and fees, and recreational flights; to clarify the exemption for nonprofit 
entities and expressly exclude rentals from the exemption; and to require purchasers to file a refund 
application for the sales tax exemption on construction materials and services 
Kinsman says it mostly feels like modernizing the code and some definition changes that affects the 
public, he is in favor and also would like in second reading to have more verbiage on the definition of 
construction materials and services. Thinks what gets submitted is valuable information for property values 
and we are lumping into an upfront tax exemption. Zastrow feels it is cleaned up a lot, happy moving 
forward with it. Bailer, still confused on some things and would like input with people who do guiding 
operations and from councilman Ranney. First reading supported. Also said to define what a completed 
house is. Be more generic on conditions of completed. Smith seconds more public input and appreciates 
work being done on the changes. Greenwood concluded council would like a couple of options put into 
an amendment to mix and match. 
Vote on the motion:  4 yeas, 0 nays,  3 absent (Sherman, Ranney, Jones). Motion was approved. 
13. Ordinance 1222 An ordinance of the Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska enacting Title 7 “City 
property” and relocating and renumbering CMC Chapters 5.12, 5.14, 5.16, 5.22, 5.23, 5.24, 5.28, and 5.29 
to Chapters 7.10 through 7.80 of title 7 of the Cordova Municipal Code – 1st reading 
M/Kinsman S/Zastrow to approve Ordinance 1222 An ordinance of the Council of the City of Cordova, 
Alaska enacting Title 7 “City property” and relocating and renumbering CMC Chapters 5.12, 5.14, 5.16, 
5.22, 5.23, 5.24, 5.28, and 5.29 to Chapters 7.10 through 7.80 of title 7 of the Cordova Municipal Code 
Kinsman said he looks forward to more points brought out on this in the future. Johnson reiterates this 
ordinance is only moving the code to a different section and changes to verbiage would be done at a later 
time in a new ordinance. Kinsman said he is in favor. Zastrow, in favor. Carpenter, Agrees. Bailer, 
supports.  
Vote on the motion:  4 yeas, 0 nays,  3 absent (Sherman, Ranney, Jones). Motion was approved. 

30



 

Reg Mtg Min 
October 2, 2024   
Page 3 of 4 

14. Resolution 10-24-31 A resolution of the Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, encouraging the State 
of Alaska and the US Secretary of Commerce to declare fisheries disaster as follows: 2024 Prince William 
Sound pink and chum salmon; and to encourage the same to declare a condition of economic disaster in 
Cordova as a result 
M/Zastrow S/Kinsman to approve Resolution 10-24-31 A resolution of the Council of the City of Cordova, 
Alaska, encouraging the State of Alaska and the US Secretary of Commerce to declare fisheries disaster 
as follows: 2024 Prince William Sound pink and chum salmon; and to encourage the same to declare a 
condition of economic disaster in Cordova as a result. 
Greenwood says they are still waiting on previous disaster funds from 2020 and 2018. Kinsman seconds, 
suggests putting together encouragement to go to our representatives. Zastrow, supports going for fishery 
funds, wishes it was a faster process. Bailer, supports but has questions on yearly expectations- are we 
guaranteeing our natural resources? do we do this every time fish don’t come back? Are we guaranteeing 
people income? Carpenter supports, she thanked Jess Rude and CDFU for putting this together said the 
numbers are staggering. Jess Rude said that ADF&G really helped with the numbers also.  
Vote on the motion: 4 yeas, 0 nays, 3 absent. Motion was approved. 
15. Resolution 10-24-32  A resolution of the Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, disbanding the Fisheries 
Advisory Committee and the Fisheries Development Committee, consolidating the roles of those two 
committees, authorizing establishment of the Cordova Fisheries Committee (CFC), and tasking the CFC 
with the consolidated roles 
M/Kinsman S/Carpenter to approve Resolution 10-24-32 A resolution of the Council of the City of 
Cordova, Alaska, disbanding the Fisheries Advisory Committee and the Fisheries Development 
Committee, consolidating the roles of those two committees, authorizing establishment of the Cordova 
Fisheries Committee (CFC), and tasking the CFC with the consolidated roles 
Kinsman believes this will give us the appropriate representation. Carpenter said it makes sense to be 
more efficient. Bailer and Zastrow said they both support. 
Vote on the motion: 4 yeas, 0 nays, 3 absent. Motion was approved. 
 
M. Unfinished Business –none 
 
N. New & Miscellaneous Business 
 
16. Pending Agenda, CIP List, Calendar, Elected & Appointed Officials lists 
Kinsman asked if the budget work sessions could be adjusted as follows: 11/6 be held on 11/7 instead 
and 11/20 be held on 11/19 instead. 
Greenwood suggested having a work session on the Oct 16 on sales taxes to make time on the Oct 23 
to have public hearing and second reading. Greenwood will send out the attorney’s PowerPoint to 
everyone. Kinsman is in favor of that.  
 
O. Audience Participation - none 
 
P. Council Comments 
Bailer said he is envisioning for the tax code – an FAQ page and we will get the questions by reaching 
out to businesses. Overall, the goal is to spread these taxes out more, not just on property owners and 
picking up these loose ends is helping toward that. He will be traveling a lot, for the rest of his term really, 
as it has become necessary to be with aging family. He knows it is not ideal, but he takes his role seriously 
and attendance is important, he paid $150 change fee to accommodate tonight’s schedule. He appreciates 
those in attendance tonight. 
Carpenter echoed Bailer’s comments for materials that will help people through the tax code changes. 
Glad to hear about the new hires Greenwood mentioned tonight. She thanked staff and the City attorney 
for the time given to this, to streamline, and make this code more current. 
Zastrow echoed the thanks to staff and council. 

31



 

Reg Mtg Min 
October 2, 2024   
Page 4 of 4 

Kinsman thanked those who may be online listening, this is Title 5, it’s how our community taxes and no 
one is here to comment/participate. This does matter and he is hopeful more people will be here for second 
reading. Business owners, citizens, we really do listen to what you have to say. He thanked staff, this was 
a huge undertaking; he appreciates the city manager taking the baton and running with it and keeping the 
forward momentum on this. He offered kudos to Council member Bailer; he knows remote participation is 
not easy and he really appreciates his attendance, his ability to remain engaged and his insight. 
 
Q. Executive Session 
17. Council discussion of recent land disposal action and negotiations, to be discussed in executive session 
because it is a subject the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect on the 
finance of the government. 
M/Kinsman S/Zastrow to go into an executive session for a Council discussion of recent land disposal 
action and negotiations, to be discussed in executive session because it is a subject the immediate 
knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect on the finance of the government. 
Vote on the motion: 4 yeas, 0 nays, 3 absent. Motion was approved. 
Mayor Allison called for a five-minute recess to clear the room at 8:05pm. Council entered the executive 
session at 8:10pm. Council was back in open session at 8:25pm. 
Mayor Allison stated they gave staff direction in the executive session regarding continued negotiations 
on the land sale. 
 
R. Adjournment  
Hearing no objection Mayor Allison adjourned the meeting at 8:27 pm. 
 
Approved: November 20, 2024 
 
 
Attest:  ____________________________________ 
 Susan Bourgeois, City Clerk   

32



Mayor Allison and Cordova City Council are soliciting interest 
for upcoming City Board and Commission vacancies 

Library Board – 1 seat, Planning Commission – 2 seats,  

Harbor Commission – 2 seats, 

Parks & Recreation Commission – 2 seats, 

Historic Preservation Commission – 2 seats 
all vacancies have terms through November 2027  

applications available on the City website 
deadline to apply for these appointments is November 26, 2024 

email cityclerk@cityofcordova.net or call 907-424-6248 
appointments will be made at a City Council meeting in Dec 2024 

33

mailto:cityclerk@cityofcordova.net


 
 

 

Council Packet Correspondence Primer: 
Communicating with Your Elected Cordova Officials 

 
This primer provides an overview of City of Cordova policies regarding the submission of correspondence 
to the City Clerk’s office for distribution to City Council. These policies are general in nature and do not 
preempt the application of relevant laws to correspondence distribution. To the extent you have questions 
regarding the distribution of specific correspondence, please contact the City Clerk’s office. 
 
What gets published in Council packets as Correspondence? 
 

• Letters, emails, cards, or other written or electronic mail addressed to City Council, any individual 
member of City Council or the Mayor, regardless of whether or not the sender has requested inclusion of 
the correspondence in a City Council packet. 

• Letters, emails, cards, or other written or electronic mail written by the Mayor, individual City Council 
members in their capacity as elected officials, or the Council as a body  

• Letters, emails, cards, or other written or electronic mail by agencies/entities that are pertinent to 
Council and the citizens of Cordova (e.g. population determination, full value determination, open 
comment periods for projects/leases in and around Cordova, etc.) 

• Only correspondence received by the Clerk’s Office on or before noon on the Wednesday before a regular 
Council meeting is eligible for inclusion in the packet for that meeting. Correspondence eligible for 
inclusion received after that date and time will be included in the next regularly scheduled Council 
meeting packet. (See CMC 3.12.035). 

 
What does not get published in Council packets as Correspondence? 
 

• Letters, emails, cards, or other written or electronic mail that are disparaging to individuals or entities 
• Letters, emails, cards, or other written or electronic mail that have been sent anonymously 
• Letters, emails, cards, or other written or electronic mail that contain confidential information or 

information that would warrant a constitutional violation of privacy or could potentially violate an 
individual’s or an entity’s constitutional rights. 

 
More information about items not subject to publication: 
 

• Correspondence that is not subject to publication in a Council packet will, however, be forwarded to the 
Mayor and City Council members with notification that the communication will not be included in the 
Council packet and the reasons for the exclusion.   

• The City will attempt to contact the writer of the correspondence to inform them that the City has 
determined not to publish what they have sent. Notifications will be sent to the return address on the 
communication if one has been provided. (the best way to ensure the City is able to reach the writer is if 
the correspondence has been emailed through the City Clerk cityclerk@cityofcordova.net) 

• A person who submits a communication that is not subject to publication in a Council packet, may still 
attend a meeting and read the communication during audience comments (if it is about an agenda item) 
or during audience participation, if it is not about an agenda item. Oral comments during a Council 
meeting will not be monitored or limited for content unless the comments made incite or promote 
violence against a person or entity. The City is not responsible or liable for the comments, thoughts, 
and/or opinions expressed by individuals during the public comment period at a Council meeting.   

 
Suggestions concerning correspondence: 
 

• Correspondence intended for all Council members should be emailed to the City Clerk at 
cityclerk@cityofcordova.net, hand-delivered or sent via U.S. mail to the Clerk’s office. Correspondence 
should be clearly addressed to “Cordova City Council.” Unless clearly stated otherwise, the City Clerk will 
presume that all correspondence addressed to City Council is intended for inclusion in the packet. 

34

mailto:cityclerk@cityofcordova.net
mailto:cityclerk@cityofcordova.net
mailto:cityclerk@cityofcordova.net
mailto:cityclerk@cityofcordova.net


35



36



37



38



39



40



41



From: David Allison
To: Susan Bourgeois
Subject: Fw: Correction of Letter re Swim Team Support
Date: Wednesday, November 6, 2024 4:55:17 PM

David Allison, Mayor
City of Cordova Alaska
P.O. Box 1210 or 601 1st Street
Cordova, AK. 99574
(907) 424-6200 City
(907) 831-6791 Cell
mayor@cityofcordova.net

From: Shelly Kocan <shellykocan@gmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, November 6, 2024 1:50 PM
To: David Allison <mayor@cityofcordova.net>
Subject: Correction of Letter re Swim Team Support
 
To City Council:

My daughter was supposed to start the swim team this week but the program has been delayed
due to a new pricing structure set out last week by the Manager of Parks and Recreation.

I understand that the city has a budget shortfall and that the pool is a major expense for our
town.

However if we are going to invest the 600k annually to have a pool I would suggest we use the
pool to its fullest potential rather than limit it's use in an effort to decrease the net loss from
running the pool.

The swim team program is a growing program that currently has 60 participants, with
anticipation of 80 participants for this current year. The benefits of this program are many
including a boost for physical, mental and social health for a third of the children in town.
Including in specific:

1. Water Safety
2. Persistence and Grit
3. Athleticism in a age of increasing sedantarianism
4. Healthy activities throughout childhood and adolescence
5. Ability to focus better during school after having an active morning
6. Positive and bright environment as we go through the darkest part of the year
7. Fostering a team spirit and a sense of belonging
8. A funnel for the high school swim team
9. Revenue for the city from swim meets with increased town visitation as well as the pool
being rented for these meets
10. Revenue for the city through pool pass purchasing
11. Revenue for the city through increased proportion of the population wanting to use the

42

mailto:mayor@cityofcordova.net
mailto:cityclerk@cityofcordova.net


pool currently and in perpetuity as they age

As a swim team parent we currently spend nearly $500 per year per child to participate
including pool passes, swim team dues and equipment. If that price were to creep toward
$800-$900 per year it would price many families out of this amazing program, shifting even
more cost to the parents who could afford the increase.

With the new proposal, it is required that the swim team rent the pool for each hour that the
swim team uses the facilities. If that is the case then parents should not be required to purchase
a swim pass for their children in addition to that charge.

However I would suggest that charging the annual pool pass is a better option considering that
it encourages maximum use of the facilities and a less limiting structure for the kids.

The coaches for the swim team are already individually volunteering 12+ hours per week to
operate this non-profit program. Kids and parents are getting up early to get kids to practice by
6:50 on school mornings. The team already stages 4 fundraising events per year, and we could
potentially try to increase our fundraising but not with such little notice.

I feel confident that a compromise could be reached and that everyone wants to support the
children of our community in their pursuit of healthy lifelong hobbies and skills.

The Ice Worm swim program is a valuable asset to our community, please find a way to
rectify this situation with upmost haste so that kids can get in the pool this week, and start
practicing for the upcoming championship in Decemeber.

Sincerely,
Shelly Kocan
Parent, Community Member & Cordova Business Owner

-- 
www.acucdv.com

43

http://www.acucdv.com/


From: Craig Kuntz
To: Susan Bourgeois; David Allison
Date: Wednesday, November 6, 2024 12:39:51 PM

Dear Members of the Cordova City Council,

 

I hope this letter finds you well. I am writing to express my strong support for the Cordova
Iceworm Swim Team and to highlight the vital benefits this program offers to our children and
our community as a whole. 

 

The Cordova Iceworm Swim Team provides much more than just an opportunity for our youth
to learn how to swim. It fosters a sense of community, encourages teamwork, and instills life
skills that are invaluable beyond the pool. Participation in sports has been shown to enhance
young people's academic performance. Students involved in athletics, such as swimming,
often demonstrate better focus, discipline, and time management skills, which translate into
improved performance in their studies. The Iceworm Swim Team is no exception; teachers
have reported that their student's participation has contributed to significant improvements in
their grades and overall school engagement.

 

Moreover, the program thrives thanks to the dedication of our volunteers. Parents, community
members, and former swimmers come together to coach, mentor, and support our kids. This
volunteer network not only reduces operational costs but also enriches the lives of our youth
by providing positive role models. These individuals invest their time and energy to ensure the
Iceworm Swim Team is a safe, fun, and supportive environment, encouraging our kids to grow
both as athletes and as individuals. The strong sense of community fostered by this program
can’t be overstated. 

 

The Iceworm Swim Team engages in numerous fundraisers throughout the year to help keep
costs down for participants.  There are also generous donors in the community who contribute
financially to the team.  The Iceworm Swim Team has purchased numerous things that benefit
not only the team but also the other pool users.  The list includes daily use items such as kick
boards, pull buoys, toys, touch pads, clocks, timers, and paying 3000 dollars for lane lines. 
The team always pays rent for the local swim meets and always cleans up after themselves. 
Lastly, the State of Alaska swimming rules do not require staff lifeguards to be present during
swim practice.  There is not a cost to the City for staffing the pool during swim team hours. 
The coaches are qualified to act in this capacity and covered under USA Swimming.

 

44

mailto:craig.d.k@hotmail.com
mailto:cityclerk@cityofcordova.net
mailto:mayor@cityofcordova.net


I am deeply concerned about the proposed fee increases for the swim team, as they would pose
a significant barrier to participation for many families within our community. Swimming is an
important life skill that promotes safety and health, and access to this program should not be
limited based on socioeconomic status. Increasing fees could lead to decreased enrollment
and, consequently, diminish the program's ability to thrive and support our youth. We should
strive to ensure that all children have the opportunity to participate, regardless of their
financial circumstances.

 

Therefore, I urge the City Council to reconsider the proposed fee increases and explore
alternative funding solutions that do not compromise the accessibility of this valuable
program. Rather than placing an additional financial burden on families, let’s work together to
find ways to sustain and enhance the Cordova Iceworm Swim Team, allowing it to continue
making a profound difference in the lives of our children.

 

Thank you for considering my perspective on this important matter. I am confident that,
together, we can ensure that our community continues to support programs that cultivate
healthy, engaged, and successful young people.

 

 

Thank you

45



From: David Allison
To: Susan Bourgeois
Subject: Fw: New Fees for Iceworm Swim Team
Date: Thursday, November 7, 2024 5:42:27 AM

David Allison, Mayor
City of Cordova Alaska
P.O. Box 1210 or 601 1st Street
Cordova, AK. 99574
(907) 424-6200 City
(907) 831-6791 Cell
mayor@cityofcordova.net

From: Samantha S Renner <samanthal_15@hotmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, November 6, 2024 11:21 AM
To: David Allison <mayor@cityofcordova.net>; Ken Jones <councilseatg@cityofcordova.net>; Tom
Bailer <CouncilSeatA@cityofcordova.net>; Cathy Sherman <councilseatb@cityofcordova.net>; Kasey
Kinsman <councilseatc@cityofcordova.net>; Wendy Ranney <councilseatd@cityofcordova.net>;
David Zastrow <councilseate@cityofcordova.net>; Kristin Carpenter
<councilseatf@cityofcordova.net>
Subject: New Fees for Iceworm Swim Team
 
 Dear Cordova City Council Members,

I am writing to express my concerns regarding the recent $15,000 fee imposed on our local
swim team for using the community pool. As a lifelong resident of Cordova and someone who
learned to swim in this very pool, I understand deeply how vital this facility is for promoting
water safety, health, and a sense of community—especially here in rural Alaska, where
opportunities for activities can be limited during the long, dark winter months.

The swimming pool was built with a commitment to water safety and youth development,
which is being achieved by introducing hundreds of local children to swimming. I am proud to
say that both of my own children learned to swim here, gaining skills that are essential in a
water-based community like ours. Our swim team is the largest of any youth sports
organization in Cordova, providing a supportive environment that promotes both physical
health and mental resilience, which is crucial in an area where wintertime activities can be few
and far between.

I am particularly concerned that this last minute, unexpected fee will prevent our swim season
from beginning on time, and a sudden increase in costs could discourage many families from
enrolling their children in this essential program. In our community, volunteers help keep
sports programs affordable. An increase in fees would disrupt this balance, making it harder
for families to access this invaluable program and impacting children’s well-being by limiting
their opportunities for physical activity and social engagement.

I respectfully request that the city work collaboratively with the swim team to find a solution

46

mailto:mayor@cityofcordova.net
mailto:cityclerk@cityofcordova.net


that would allow them more time to plan, fundraise, or adjust to this fee. Each swimmer
already holds a pool membership and is paying approximately $500 per person to participate
in swim team. With this additional fee it could potentially double those fees for each child. The
fees to run and maintain the pool remain the same regardless of whether the swim team uses
it or not, so if they are unable to pay this new fee, the only ones who truly suffer are the
children who rely on this program. While I understand that pink salmon harvest was low so
the city received less fish tax, please remember many of these families fish and they also
didn’t make a dime on pink salmon.

Sports and community activities are not just a luxury but a necessity for our youth in rural
Alaska. They play a critical role in children’s mental and physical health and foster a strong
sense of community. I hope the council will consider the unique needs of our area and work
with us to ensure that all children in Cordova have the chance to thrive and grow through
programs like our swim team.

Thank you for your time and consideration of this matter, and for all you do to support our
community. I look forward to a positive resolution that keeps the pool accessible for our swim
team and the children it serves.

 Thank you for your time,

Samantha Renner

47



From: Julie Reynolds
To: David Allison; Susan Bourgeois
Subject: In support of Cordova Iceworm Swim Team
Date: Wednesday, November 6, 2024 1:11:32 PM

************
To Cordova City Council members,

I am writing in support of the Cordova Iceworm Swim team to reduce or eliminate the
proposed $250 rental fee. 

Swimmers already pay the City $116 for a Pool Membership, which I imagine will go up this
year. Plus we pay an annual $90 USA Swim membership, and $50 monthly dues (depending
on age and number of participants/family) for a total cost of $506 yearly. To add another $250
to rent the facility when we are already members of the pool is double dipping.

It should also be pointed out that Cordova Iceworm Swim Team is a non-profit, volunteer-run
organization. Our coaches don't get paid. Our swimmers participate in multiple fundraisers.
We pay for our own insurance and provide our own lifeguards. Cordova Iceworm Swim Team
is an extremely positive club activity for kids 6-18 years old that improves swimming skills,
fosters team camaraderie, and helps students focus in school when they spend so much energy
swimming at 6:30 am.

Adding a rental fee on top of our City Pool membership dues will price out many families
from this fast growing club full of devoted and talented young swimmers. Please consider
other means to reduce the City's deficit such as reducing the temp of the pool during swim
team practice and lap swim and covering the pool to retain heat loss.

Thank you for your time and attention,
Julie Reynolds, mother of CIST swimmers since 2016

48

mailto:alaskiejulie@gmail.com
mailto:mayor@cityofcordova.net
mailto:cityclerk@cityofcordova.net


November 6, 2024 
 
City of Cordova 
David Allison, Mayor 
City Council Members 
 
RE: Bob Korn Swimming Pool 
 
Dear Mr. Mayor and City Council Members, 
 
We are writing with great concern for the swimming pool increasing costs to be placed on the 
Ice Worm Swim Club and the community users for the upcoming season(s). 
 
We had a call from our son this morning that the increase is close to double from last year. This 
is totally unacceptable. The city knew of the cost of repairing/replacing the swim pool at the 
time the bid(s) went out and then came back.  Why wasn’t the community informed of this cost 
and that the city would be placing the burden of the repairs on the users of the pool.  
 
If the increase had been known to the community it could have initiated fund raising activities 
to offset the costs to the users. There are many low income families in the community who 
participate in swimming. These increases will mean that many families will not be able to let 
their boys or girls participate in a much needed activity.  With the city of Cordova surrounded 
by water this is a very important skill that all citizens should have access to. 
 
The fishing community of Cordova had a devastating season and many people are strapped for 
monies just to survive the winter.  Most people do not have alternative income resources 
especially going into winter.  With the large increase in property taxes, moorage and various 
other city services this year this is just another bill that can’t or will be hard to pay. This also 
affects local businesses since there will be less buying power by the local people. 
We’re  not sure what the answer to this city problem is but deferring these costs to the 
community until the spring/summer fishing season is an alternative.  Also allowing the 
community to do fund raising for the next 3 to 4 months before the increased fees are due is 
possible as well. 
 
We appreciate your time and consideration in this matter. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Gerald Thorne 
Sue Thorne 
 
907-632-0905 
907-632-0910 
Email: suethorneak@yahoo.com 

49

mailto:suethorneak@yahoo.com


50



From: David Allison
To: Susan Bourgeois
Subject: Fw: Iceworms Swimming
Date: Thursday, November 7, 2024 5:40:44 AM

Council

David Allison, Mayor
City of Cordova Alaska
P.O. Box 1210 or 601 1st Street
Cordova, AK. 99574
(907) 424-6200 City
(907) 831-6791 Cell
mayor@cityofcordova.net

From: bwild907@yahoo.com <bwild907@yahoo.com>
Sent: Wednesday, November 6, 2024 8:46 AM
To: David Allison <mayor@cityofcordova.net>
Subject: Iceworms Swimming
 

Hello, 
I would like to voice my support for the swim team program, as my son Rowan gets a lot out
of the experience.  
The proposal for increased fees, almost doubling the cost for each participant propose a risk of
pricing out kids, especially those with more than one in the program.  I understand the need
for revenue, however, I think it’s important to look at what the Iceworm program brings to the
town. Not only water safety education, but teamwork, competition, discipline, and healthy
exercise for the swimmers.  
The coaches and parents fundraise and volunteer their time which also has a value attached.  I
urge the council to consider that having users of our pool facility is important, and if you price
people out of using the pool, the cost will be spread among even fewer, risking pricing out
even more.  If you squeeze the program too tight, it will go away, and the city will lose the
revenues and benefits the Iceworms bring to the city. 
I appreciate your consideration on this matter and urge you to get these kids in the pool as
soon as possible.  There has to be a middle ground and reasonable compromise to allow as
many kids as possible to participate while still getting the city the money they are looking for
in the budget.  
Thank you, 
Brian Wildrick 
Iceworm parent and volunteer 

Sent from Yahoo Mail for iPhone

51

mailto:mayor@cityofcordova.net
mailto:cityclerk@cityofcordova.net
https://mail.onelink.me/107872968?pid=nativeplacement&c=Global_Acquisition_YMktg_315_Internal_EmailSignature&af_sub1=Acquisition&af_sub2=Global_YMktg&af_sub3=&af_sub4=100000604&af_sub5=EmailSignature__Static_


52



53



From: Christi Banks
To: David Allison; Tom Bailer; Cathy Sherman; Kasey Kinsman; Wendy Ranney; David Zastrow; Kristin Carpenter;

Ken Jones; Susan Bourgeois
Cc: executivedirector@cordovachamber.com; Seaview Condo; tommysheridan@ymail.com; lisa@ctcak.coop
Subject: Chamber Funding Request
Date: Friday, November 8, 2024 12:26:57 PM

To the Mayor and City Council,

This letter is to request that the City Council reconsider the proposed funding cut for the
Cordova Chamber of Commerce.

 

It goes without saying that Cordova’s finances are in a precarious state after the disastrous
fishing season. All our residents and businesses are going to be affected by cutbacks across the
board. I respect there is no way around it and don’t envy the position the City Council is in as
decision-makers. It is a heavy responsibility to bear. Thank you for your willingness to serve
during this challenging time.

 

While it makes financial sense to cut funding to non-profit organizations in general to preserve
vital services, the drastic reduction proposal to the Chamber has the potential to decrease City
revenues further, at a time when maximizing revenue sources matters the most. Not all non-
profit organizations generate revenue or provide vital services, but the Chamber is in a
distinctive position to generate increasing and long-lasting City revenue. Based on the data
presented by the Chamber, City contributions yield a 2:1 return on investment.

 

City Council has seen all the work the Chamber does, and hopefully Council agrees that the
work is impressive for two full-time and one part-time employees. Cutting funding to the
Chamber means the Chamber will be forced to decrease efforts. This directly results in
decreased revenue for the City.

 

For example, I envision the first cut to be to community events. While events seem obscure
enough, they bring people from outside Cordova and encourage spending, which benefits the
City through sales tax. Cutting events means losing that sales tax revenue. This is strictly the
financial impact of events and doesn’t consider quality of life for residents. Residents who feel
the decrease in quality of life are more likely to leave Cordova. Out-migration is the death of a
community as it brings further decreasing revenues.

 

Further, the Chamber’s intensive efforts to generate tourism revenue has been successful year
over year. While some residents prefer to avoid it, tourism will happen whether we like it or

54

mailto:sissychristi@gmail.com
mailto:mayor@cityofcordova.net
mailto:CouncilSeatA@cityofcordova.net
mailto:councilseatb@cityofcordova.net
mailto:councilseatc@cityofcordova.net
mailto:councilseatd@cityofcordova.net
mailto:councilseate@cityofcordova.net
mailto:councilseatf@cityofcordova.net
mailto:councilseatg@cityofcordova.net
mailto:cityclerk@cityofcordova.net
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=8ea4b1ce8e794584abada6f27b8feb23-Guest_85fcc
mailto:adorealaska@gmail.com
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=f1c6d21b3c134235a38cd7e4cbd04ca0-Guest_753d7
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=6f90eee465a347dd8b3c03ce57625499-Guest_5a90b


not. Cordova is in the unique position to be ahead of tourism so we can decide what it looks
like and how to maximize revenue from it while maintaining the quality of life we all desire. If
the Chamber is going to continue to be successful in these efforts moving forward, it needs to
be funded. Reduced funding from the City means we go backward in tourism income. It would
be damaging for Cordova to lose the forward momentum and increased opportunities to bring
in tourism dollars.

There are so many more reasons for the City to continue funding the Chamber at, or as close
to, previous funding levels. Too many to mention in a single letter. I encourage Council to
revisit the previous meetings where the Chamber Executive Director presented comprehensive
outlines of all Chamber projects that the City benefits from before making a final decision
regarding this funding cut. 

 

Thank you for your time and consideration, 

Christi Banks

Owner F/V Jamm’n Salm’n

Chamber Board Secretary

55



From: Osa Arnold Schultz
To: David Allison; Tom Bailer; Cathy Sherman; Kasey Kinsman; Wendy Ranney; David Zastrow; Kristin Carpenter;

Ken Jones; Susan Bourgeois
Cc: executivedirector@cordovachamber.com; Seaview Condo; tommysheridan@ymail.com; lisa@ctcak.coop; Christi

Banks
Subject: Re: Chamber of Commerce Grant
Date: Friday, November 8, 2024 4:21:40 PM

November 8, 2024

 

To Mayor Allison, Cordova City Council and City Clerk

Re:   Funding for the Cordova Chamber of Commerce

While we do understand that cuts need to be made, the reduction you are currently
proposing for the Cordova Chamber grant would significantly reduce our ability to fund
the programs and events that the chamber has successfully produced for the last
decade. 

Our Board of Directors will continue to do its best to focus our efforts on our most
significant programs.  We will maintain our local business support assistance and
continue as much as possible to attract visitors in the various areas, including marketing
& encouraging convention events.  And we will continue to look for ways to diversify our
fundraising to support as many of our other programs as possible.  However, such a
drastic cut (as currently proposed) to our budget would ultimately reduce our
effectiveness and result in our inability to produce some of our favorite traditional
community events.

As you continue your deliberations on Cordova’s 2025 budget, I wish to encourage you
to evaluate funding the local entities proportionally where you can, by recognizing where
dollars invested stimulate returning revenues.

We have been, and wish to continue to be a productive partner of the City of Cordova. 
Consider the many ways the chamber supports and contributes to our local economy;
our continued collaboration is extremely important in these lean years.

Thank you for your past support and the generous commitment of your time to provide
for Cordova’s future.

 

Osa Arnold-Schultz
Chamber Board President
Owner:  Pet Projects Unlimited 35yr
                  Seaview Condo 27yr
                  Mobile Grid Trailers, Inc. 39yr

56

mailto:adorealaska@gmail.com
mailto:mayor@cityofcordova.net
mailto:CouncilSeatA@cityofcordova.net
mailto:councilseatb@cityofcordova.net
mailto:councilseatc@cityofcordova.net
mailto:councilseatd@cityofcordova.net
mailto:councilseate@cityofcordova.net
mailto:councilseatf@cityofcordova.net
mailto:councilseatg@cityofcordova.net
mailto:cityclerk@cityofcordova.net
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=8ea4b1ce8e794584abada6f27b8feb23-Guest_85fcc
mailto:adorealaska@gmail.com
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=f1c6d21b3c134235a38cd7e4cbd04ca0-Guest_753d7
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=6f90eee465a347dd8b3c03ce57625499-Guest_5a90b
mailto:sissychristi@gmail.com
mailto:sissychristi@gmail.com


From: Cathy Renfeldt
To: dot.amhs.comments@alaska.gov
Cc: Rep. Louise Stutes; David Allison; Susan Bourgeois; danaya.hoover@eyak-nsn.gov; Cooper, Erin -FS; Katrina

Hoffman; lisa@ctcak.coop; Natasha Casciano; Seaview Condo; nellyhnd@gmail.com; Christi Banks;
tommysheridan@ymail.com; Emily Anderson; lstavig@cordovaelectric.com; Nattilee Kinsman; LCDR Ryan Foust

Subject: Comments on Summer 2024 AMHS Schedule
Date: Tuesday, November 12, 2024 1:51:19 PM
Attachments: Outlook-tvo5ufz0.png
Importance: High

Dear Commissioner Anderson,

I am writing to you on behalf of the Cordova Chamber of Commerce, a nonprofit
membership organization in Cordova, Alaska representing a broad cross-section of
businesses and organizations in Cordova. As the voice of the business community, I am
writing to provide feedback on the draft Summer 2025 schedule for the Alaska Marine
Highway System (AMHS).

AMHS is essential for our community’s connectivity, economic vitality, and quality of
life, as Cordova depends on AMHS ferries and air service to fulfill our transportation
needs. Given the critical role of AMHS service to our community, I strongly urge that
Cordova receive equal ferry sailings to Valdez, which has alternate access via the
state’s surface highway network.

In reviewing the draft schedule, I am concerned to see that Valdez is slated for five ferry
visits per week while Cordova is scheduled for only four. This discrepancy disadvantages
Cordova residents, fishermen, mariculture operators, and other businesses who rely on
consistent ferry service for transporting supplies, accessing medical care and
equipment maintenance, supporting tourism, and connecting with markets in
Anchorage and beyond. Reducing ferry access relative to other locations places undue
strain on Cordova’s economy and community life, exacerbating the logistical and
financial challenges of our remote location.

Unlike Valdez, Cordova has no highway connections. The ferry is our primary means of
receiving goods and services, as well as a critical link for families, students, and
business owners. The proposed schedule, with fewer sailings to Cordova than to Valdez,
does not reflect the importance of AMHS to Cordova as a sole transportation lifeline.
Increasing the frequency of Cordova's service to match or exceed Valdez's would allow
our community equitable access and address the heightened dependency we have on
AMHS due to our unique geographic constraints.

Additionally, Cordova hosts several cultural and seasonal events, such as the Copper
River Salmon Jam and the Cordova Fungus Festival, which attract visitors and stimulate
our local economy. Increased ferry service to Cordova during these times would
enhance accessibility for residents and visitors alike, supporting Cordova’s seasonal

57

mailto:executivedirector@cordovachamber.com
mailto:dot.amhs.comments@alaska.gov
mailto:Rep.Louise.Stutes@akleg.gov
mailto:mayor@cityofcordova.net
mailto:cityclerk@cityofcordova.net
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=b28c074600c145909dff828ddaaf59fe-Guest_9678b
mailto:erin.cooper@usda.gov
mailto:khoffman@pwssc.org
mailto:khoffman@pwssc.org
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=6f90eee465a347dd8b3c03ce57625499-Guest_5a90b
mailto:natasha@cordovagear.com
mailto:adorealaska@gmail.com
mailto:nellyhnd@gmail.com
mailto:sissychristi@gmail.com
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=f1c6d21b3c134235a38cd7e4cbd04ca0-Guest_753d7
mailto:EAnderson@cityofcordova.net
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=75694eebfe7e42a6851e2b2140ada412-Guest_75888
mailto:studiored.cdv@gmail.com
mailto:ryan.s.foust@uscg.mil



economic activities and contributing to the region’s tourism development.

Thank you for considering these critical points as you review the Summer 2025 AMHS
schedule. Equitable service for Cordova is essential to meeting the state’s commitment
to providing reliable transportation for all Alaskans, regardless of their location’s
highway access. I am hopeful that the AMHS schedule will reflect this commitment by
ensuring that Cordova receives at least as many ferry sailings as Valdez, in recognition of
our complete reliance on AMHS for transportation.

Sincerely,

Cathy Renfeldt (she/her)
Executive Director
Cordova Chamber of Commerce
907.424.7260 | cordovachamber.com
I live and work on the land of d'AXunhyuu, the Eyak People.

This electronic mail message contains information that (a) is or may be LEGALLY PRIVILEGED, CONFIDENTIAL, PROPRIETARY IN NATURE,
OR OTHERWISE PROTECTED BY LAW FROM DISCLOSURE, and/or (b) is intended only for the use of the Addressee(s) named herein. If you are
not the intended recipient, an addressee, or the person responsible for delivering this to an addressee, you are hereby notified that reading, using,
copying, or distributing any part of this message, or taking any action in reliance on the contents of this message, is strictly prohibited. If you have
received this electronic mail message in error, please contact us immediately and take the steps necessary to delete the message completely from your
computer system. Thank you for your cooperation.

58

http://cordovachamber.com/
http://www.cordovachamber.com/


From: David Allison
To: Susan Bourgeois
Subject: Fw: Kelly Easement request on ski hill
Date: Tuesday, November 12, 2024 1:12:15 PM

For Council and Manager…
Please put in Correspondence fir 11/20 regular meeting…

David Allison, Mayor
City of Cordova Alaska
P.O. Box 1210 or 601 1st Street
Cordova, AK. 99574
(907) 424-6200 City
(907) 831-6791 Cell
mayor@cityofcordova.net

From: Paul Kelly <paulkellyak@gmail.com>
Sent: Monday, November 11, 2024 8:52 PM
To: David Allison <mayor@cityofcordova.net>; Lilyhorn, Savannah A (DNR)
<savannah.lilyhorn@alaska.gov>
Subject: Kelly Easement request on ski hill
 
Mayor Allison,

Please share this with council members and have it placed in the packet for the Nov 20
Council meeting, thank you.

Approximately a year ago Linda and I applied to the State of Alaska for an easement to our
lots on the ski hill that directly boarder the States land.  The State asked for comments recently
and the City staff responded by sending a three page protest in opposition of granting this
request.  I hope all of you have read these comments carefully, especially the closing
statement. No other comments were filed.

We are requesting the Mayor and City Council direct staff to have their comments rescinded
for the following reasons.

Comments like these are extremely detrimental to housing development and investing in
Cordova.

The area we have requested to bury utilities and water is within mere feet of our shared
property line with the States land.   Running utilities from any other location would make no
sense, be extremely expensive and cause us to dig up a south facing mountainside that does
not have to be damaged at all.  It can remain completely in tact as a green area.  

The act of digging in utilities will naturally make a driveway type access to our building site
very near the ski hill parking lot.  We will need access for safely hauling in fill, concrete and
building materials.  Digging in a driveway from below would be a very steep approach, too
steep and too dangerous for heavy loads to travel.

59

mailto:mayor@cityofcordova.net
mailto:cityclerk@cityofcordova.net
tel:(907) 424-6200
tel:(907) 831-6791


Staffs protests mention parking and maintenance and dangers to workers etc.  We have not
asked to use any part of or to encumber the ski hill parking area, we will have our own parking
on our own property.  In fact we have offered to excavate the area to “increase” parking on the
upper level for skiers in exchange for the excavated rock.  

The snow dump area depicted in staffs protest is not a snow dump area, it is the hill incline. 
The parking area and the snow dump is actually in the rest of blue squared off area.  The ski
hill staff does the snow plowing and the area is plowed most all the time for visitors sledding
or hiking or meetings and work in the snack shack etc.  No crew would ever be in danger of
any kind caused by us having a house on our own land.

In a typical year the ski hill is open approximately 30-40 days for 3-4 hours per day.  That
time represents 1.5% of the hours in a year there is any activity to speak of at all in the
requested easement area.

We have offered to build a property that is skier friendly and a driveway will allow a smooth
trail for the public to walk up the incline to enjoy the view as they have been doing for years. 
We also offered to build a boardwalk lookout station and invite skiers and tourist to enjoy our
property with us.

Safety would be much improved in this area.  As it stands now the public accesses our private
land on a very poor slippery trail through the brush and slippery rocks on State land where
slips and falls and injuries can easily transpire.  A driveway would be much safer for all, be
much better for the community and tourists.

We have no plans to subdivide or make a subdivision of any kind out of these lots.  We
foresee no circumstance where we would allow others to use our easement to access other lots.
And after looking at maps of the area we see no other place where other people would be
asking for access easements.  The water tank and buildings are in the way.

In staffs closing arguments they speak of there being no need for the State to grant us an
easement on the top edge of our property because an easement from the platted F Street below
allows access to all of our lots and all we have to do is spend half a million dollars or more to
build F St at no cost to the city.

F Street only exists in concept.  There is a 25’ cliff that drops off sharply to Ski Hill Road.  It
looks to me like it would have to be blasted away for access, then it looks like F Street is a
wetlands area and if that wasn’t enough all utilities, water, sewer, power, coms would have to
be dug in then run straight up the hill digging up the mountainside, to finally arrive at our
building site that literally connects on a zero lot line to the States land where we have
requested an easement, where all utilities are just feet away!

It is not appropriate for staff to be demanding we building public streets if we want to access
our property. Our request is between us and the land owner, on land that allows for multiple
use easements.  

If there is a second easement from the ski hill road that is needed for some reason it is the
State who has the authority to address that and work with us to accomplish this request. 

Our easement request is logical, reasonable and practical.  It encumbers, harms or endangers

60



no one at anytime.  

Again we respectfully request The Mayor and City Council direct staff to  rescind their
comments in opposition of our development / easement request.

Thank you,
Paul and Linda Kelly

61



1

Susan Bourgeois

From: natasha@cordovagear.com
Sent: Wednesday, November 13, 2024 8:10 AM
To: Susan Bourgeois
Subject: City Council Budget letter please include in packet

Dear Cordova City Council, 

Thank you for the time and effort you volunteer to help our community, your efforts are very much appreciated and 
needed. 

As a Chamber of Commerce Board member, a community member and a business owner, following what happens 
within our community is important to me, my family and my coworkers.   

The Cordova Chamber does a lot to create a better quality of life in Cordova.  The upcoming Christmas Tree Lighting is 
always a community favorite and an important celebration during the dark days of December.  The Chamber assists 
promotion of the Iceworm Festival, another winter festival that helps with the quality of life and enjoyment of a unique 
community, Shorebird Festival, 4th of JulyCelebration, Salmon Jam and Fungus Festival.  All of these celebrations take 
effort, planning, time and money.   

As a member and a board member of the Chamber,  discussions about how we can improve the economy, help small 
businesses become more successful through training opportunities, improve quality of life are all topics I am involved in 
and familiar with and are beneficial.   There is one discussion that baffles me, and seems to make little sense.  Many 
conversations have occurred, but nothing has changed in regard to the growing Cruise Ship visits.  Sales in small 
businesses from this industry are very small, so sales tax gained is minimal.  Cordova has an infrastructure that we are 
struggling to maintain and improve and don’t have enough money to save for future possibly catastrophic repairs and 
upgrades.  At the same time the $2.50 head tax that goes to the harbor fund remains at $2.50.   

The cruise industry is selling Cordova visits as a “product” that they make a profit on, Cordova should also be able to 
make some money on that “product”. The city staff, Chamber staff and small businesses all spend a great deal of effort 
to welcome these visitors to the community and that costs us time and money.  Why not take a much closer look at this 
opportunity to bring in some money from this outside industry?  Other ports around Alaska have been and are adding to 
the head tax to do projects, maintain existing infrastructure and gain much needed dollars. This is an obvious way to 
increase some funds and to have those funds grow as the worldwide cruise industry grows and Cordova becomes even 
more in demand.  Alaskan Cruise tours are being advertised all over the world and the industry is growing.  Right now 
the smaller ships visit Cordova and the price for the cruises are not inexpensive.  The cruise companies can build in the 
extra cost into the ticket price and will not suffer. If we as a Community do nothing to raise the amount we receive from 
this industry, we will continue to spend more and more money through staff time, infrastructure use, maintenance and 
repair while the “product” sold creates a profit that the community does not benefit from. 

Please consider this as a possibility for making a small change in how Cordova can gain some outside dollars. 

Sincerely, 
Natasha 

Natasha Casciano 
Cordova Gear 
P.O. Box 584 

62



2

Cordova, Alaska. 99574 
Natasha direct 907-429-5590 
Store 907.424.5590 
Www.cordovagear.com 
Www.alaskaadventureshop.com 
Support the Cordova Trail and Covered Spaces Project by donating today at : 
https://visitcordovaalaska.org/cordovacoveredoutdoorspacesproject.html 

63



From: Dorne Hawxhurst
To: Susan Bourgeois
Subject: Comments for Council Packet Regarding Property Tax Exemption Proposals
Date: Wednesday, November 13, 2024 9:43:22 AM

Jeff Guard and I oppose the proposed new property tax exemptions for the following reasons:

1. New construction increases the community’s cost of infrastructure, schools, utilities,
and roads.  The proposed new exemptions place that new cost burden on existing
properties.  This is inequitable.

2. A significant percentage of property in Cordova is already exempt.  Schools are exempt;
churches are exempt; federal, state, and local government properties are exempt.
Adding still more exempt properties to the tax roll is not in Cordova’s best interest.

3. The short-term and long-term outlook for revenue in Cordova is not good.  Revenues are
declining and this is not the right time to add more tax exemptions into the mix.

Thank you for your consideration,
Dorne Hawxhurst and Jeff Guard

64

mailto:dornehawxhurst@hotmail.com
mailto:cityclerk@cityofcordova.net


  
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM # 15 
Regular Meeting Date: 11/20/24 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  CCOOMMMMUUNNIICCAATTIIOONN  FFOORRMM 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
   

FROM: Susan Bourgeois, City Clerk   
 

DATE: 11/13/24 
 

ITEM:  Ordinance 1223 – Economic Development Property Tax Exemptions (EDE) - forms 
    

NEXT STEP: Roll Call Vote adopts the ordinance on second reading 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
  
     X     ORDINANCE    _____ RESOLUTION 
  _____ MOTION    _____ INFORMATION 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
                                                                                                       
I. REQUEST OR ISSUE:  adoption of Ordinance 1223 
 
II. RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion/second to adopt, then roll call vote to adopt Ordinance 1223, 
4 yes votes required for adoption. 
 
III. BACKGROUND:  City Council has conducted many work sessions with the City Attorneys and 
staff in order to rewrite code concerning the economic development property tax exemption. The goal 
was to create a more useful economic development exemption code which would in turn hopefully ease 
Cordova’s housing issue, and eventually spread out the property tax base. Ordinance 1223 was introduced 
at the Nov. 6, 2024, regular meeting and one portion of the application required a council decision 
between 2 options for the Single-Family Residential EDE. Council amended the ordinance by amending 
Exhibit A, the EDE application, to choose that the Single-Family Residential EDE is for 8 years on the 
first $150,000 of assessed value. 
Staff discussed another change with the City Attorney and opted to remove the requirement for notarized 
applications and instead there is a signed certification now in 2 places in exhibit A. 
Following this explanatory memo is a memo from Attorney Jes Spuhler. 
 
IV. LEGAL ISSUES:  City Attorney has written and reviewed the ordinance. She has determined that 
the amendment made on Nov. 6 does not constitute a substantial change to the ordinance; therefore, 
second reading and final adoption tonight are appropriate. 

65



           City of Cordova 
Ordinance 1223 Introduction Memo 

Page 1 of 2 

M E M O R A N D U M  

 

TO: CORDOVA CITY COUNCIL 
CORDOVA CITY MANAGER 
CORDOVA CITY CLERK 
 

FROM: JESSICA J. SPUHLER 
HOLLY C. WELLS 
 

RE: ORDINANCE 1223: AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CORDOVA, ALASKA, ESTABLISHIING ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTIONS RELATED TO 
COMMERCIAL AND RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT IN THE CITY AND 
SETTING FORTH CRITERIA FOR SUCH EXEMPTIONS IN A 
STANDARDIZED APPLICATION FORM. 
 

CLIENT: CITY OF CORDOVA 
 

FILE NO.: 401777.291 
 

DATE: OCTOBER 31, 2024 

 
On August 7, 2024, the City of Cordova City Council (“Council”) passed Ordinance 1217, 
adopting new Chapters 5.06 and 5.07 of the Cordova Municipal Code (“CMC”), 
establishing property tax exemptions and deferrals, as well as exemption application 
processes. Before and after passage of Ordinance 1217, the Council has held multiple 
work sessions identifying the scope and criteria to be associated with an economic 
development property tax exemption (“EDE”).  

Council has determined that development of all forms of housing: single family, 
multifamily, and affordable housing, should be incentivized through the EDE.  Additionally, 
commercial development, particularly mixed-use development, should also be targeted 
by the EDE. Finally, the rehabilitation of aged and blighted properties should also be 
eligible for exemption.  

Ordinance 1223 adopts a standard application form to be used by the City to offer and 
assess eligibility for six EDE categories:  1) Single Family Residential; 2) Affordable 
Housing; 3) Multifamily Residential; 4) Mixed-Use Development; 5) Commercial 
Development; and 6) Rehabilitation. The criteria of each category are the product of 
discussion and general direction by Council, but should be the subject of further 
consideration upon introduction.  

66



           City of Cordova 
Ordinance 1223 Introduction Memo 

Page 2 of 2 

Council has spent time discussing moral hazards and unintended consequences that may 
be associated with the offering of these exemptions.  In order to guard against certain 
concerns of Council:  

1) All exemptions speak only to the exemption of value assessed on improvements; 
none provides an exemption associated with the value of raw land in Cordova.  

2) None of the exemptions transfer with the sale of the property.  

3) All exemptions require that developers utilize inspections per the Codes adopted 
by the State Fire Marshal pertaining to commercial and residential building, at the 
developer’s cost.  

EDE will be applied for per the process now outlined in CMC 5.06.020. An “Annual Report” 
which will also be adopted with the Application and is attached to the Ordinance as part 
of Exhibit A. The page entitled “City Assessor’s Use Only” is meant to collect information 
to inform the City’s future use or amendment of the EDE.  

This particular EDE Application sunsets after three years, per the terms of Ordinance 
1223, per the recommendation of Council and City Administration, to ensure that the City 
continues to consider and reevaluate the needs of the City of Cordova and target EDE 
criteria appropriately and effectively.  

 
 

67



Ordinance 1223
Page 1 of 1 

CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA 
ORDINANCE 1223 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA ESTABLISHIING 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTIONS RELATED TO COMMERCIAL 
AND RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT IN THE CITY AND SETTING FORTH CRITERIA FOR 

SUCH EXEMPTIONS IN A STANDARDIZED APPLICATION FORM. 

WHEREAS, the City of Cordova recently amended its Cordova Municipal Code Title 5 “Revenue and 
Finance” provisions to address changes to its property and sales tax regimes; and 

WHEREAS, the City adopted a revised Section 5.07.060 reflecting recent legislative changes to the 
State’s economic development exemption, found at AS 29.45.050; and  

WHEREAS, City Council has met in multiple work sessions to discuss the parameters of appropriate 
economic development exemptions within the definitions provided by state statute, focusing on economic 
development exemption criteria incentivizing the development and redevelopment of housing within the 
City of Cordova.  

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, 

Section 1.  The City Council approves as to form and substance the Economic Development Exemption 
Application attached as Exhibit A to this ordinance, setting forth the City of Cordova’s economic 
development criteria as required by statute.   

Section 2.  Effective Date.  If one or more referendum petitions with signatures are properly filed within 
one (1) month after the passage and publication of this ordinance, the ordinance shall not go into effect until 
the petition or petitions are finally found to be illegal and/or insufficient or, if any such petition is found 
legal and sufficient, until the ordinance is approved in an election by a majority of the qualified voters, 
voting on the question.  If no referendum petition with signatures is filed, this ordinance shall go into effect 
thirty (30) days after its passage and publication. 2025 shall be the first year for which applicants may seek 
exemptions under CMC 5.07.060.  

Section 3.  Sunset Provision.  The Economic Development Exemption Application is repealed on December 
31, 2027, unless extended beyond that date by Ordinance.  

1st reading: November 6, 2024. 
2nd reading and public hearing: November 20, 2024. 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS ______ DAY OF __________________, 2024. 

__________________________________ 
David Allison, Mayor  

ATTEST: 
__________________________________ 
Susan Bourgeois, CMC, City Clerk 

68



 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 
  

69



 
CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY 
TAX EXEMPTION APPLICATION 

 

 
  

 
  

  
 
 

  
 
 
 

 
File two originals of this Application for any and each property for which you are seeking an economic 
development property tax exemption or deferral. The Application must be filed with the City Clerk no 

later than January 15 of the year the exemption is desired to take effect. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 70



 

GUIDELINES AND CRITERIA FOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTIONS 
 
 

GENERAL INFORMATION 
The State of Alaska revised the definition of economic development under Title 29 of the Alaska Statutes in 2022.  Previously, 
the economic development exemption was limited to certain specific criteria related to businesses and their economic impact.  
The revised statute expanded local government’s ability to legislate at the local level the scope and criteria of economic 
development exemptions enacted by local ordinance.  
 
The Cordova City Council met multiple times in 2023 and 2024 to identify the economic development criteria set forth in this 
application, which has been adopted by ordinance, pursuant to the requirements of AS 29.45.050(m).  City Council ultimately 
determined that this application would include economic development criteria associated with the development and 
redevelopment of real property in Cordova, primarily to incentivize much needed additional housing for residents.   
 
This Application sunsets on December 31, 2027, requiring the Cordova City Council to at that time either adopt the same criteria 
by ordinance or identify new criteria to address community needs for economic development. 
  

REFERENCES 
CMC 5.06.020 Applications – Initial Review: 

A. Applications for exemptions and deferrals must be submitted by January 15 of the year in which they are sought, unless a 
different application deadline is specified in Chapter 5.07 of this code. The City will not consider the granting of any tax 
exemption or deferral under Chapter 5.07 until the applicant submits a full and complete application and provides such 
additional information as may be requested by the City Clerk, assessor, and City Council. The assessor may make an 
independent investigation of the application or property in making a determination under this section. The City Clerk shall 
notify the applicant, in writing, of the City Clerk’s completeness determination on the application for exemption. 

B. The City Clerk may prepare a standard application form that upon completion will provide adequate and sufficient 
information to determine whether any tax exemption or deferral should be granted. The accuracy of the information provided 
in the application must be verified by oath of the applicant or an authorized officer of the applicant.  

C. If the applicant fails or refuses to provide information required or requested by the City within the time period established 
by the City, the exemption shall be denied.  

D. An applicant delinquent in the registration for, filing of a return, or payment of, any City property or sales tax, City special 
assessment, or City utility bill may not be granted an exemption and/or deferral under this section.  

E. Any person requesting a tax exemption or deferral pursuant to this Chapter and Chapter 5.07 shall pay to the City an initial 
application fee which must be submitted at the same time the application form is submitted. Application fees shall be set 
forth in the City’s fee schedule. 

F. If any person knowingly makes any false representations in any submission to the City related to an initial application for or 
review of a tax exemption or deferral under this Chapter or Chapter 5.07, that person shall be punishable by a fine as set 
forth in Chapter 1.28. Any misstatement of or error in fact may render an application null and void and may be cause for the 
revocation of any tax exemption or deferral adopted in reliance on such information.  

G. Exemptions claimed under Section 5.07.010 are governed by the process and timeline mandated by the State as set forth in 
that section. 

 
CMC 5.07.060 Economic Development Property Exemption 

A. The assessed value of property used for economic development, as defined in this Chapter, may be exempt from City 
property taxes or receive a deferral from City property taxes under the conditions listed in this section.  

B. “Property used for economic development” as used in this section, means that part of real or personal property, as 
determined by the assessor, that is being developed or redeveloped in a manner intended to result in an outcome that causes 
an increase in, or avoids a decrease of, economic activity, gross domestic product, or the City tax base in such a manner that 
City Council has determined an exemption or deferral from property tax is in the best interest of the Cordova community.  

C. Property used for economic development may be:  
1. Exempted from property taxes on up to one hundred percent of the assessed value of the property for a period 

determined by City Council and adopted by ordinance;  
2. Deferred from payment of taxes for a period determined by City Council and adopted by ordinance; or  
3. Deferred from payment of property taxes until substantial completion of construction if a property owner is in the 

process of developing or building property used for economic development but has not yet completed construction 
on such property. 

D. City Council shall approve the economic development exemption and deferral application form, and any substantive 
changes to that application, by ordinance. The application shall specify the specific types of land use that causes an increase 
in or avoids a decrease of economic activity, gross domestic product, or City tax base in such a manner that an exemption or 
deferral from property tax is in the best interest of the Cordova community. The application shall specify the terms and 

71



 

conditions of an exemption or deferral. The approved application form and any changes to the form shall be published at 
least 30 days before taking effect. Except as otherwise provided in this section, an application under this section shall be 
processed in the same manner as all applications under this Chapter and Chapter 5.06.  

E. In addition to the application requirements and specifications adopted in the application itself or otherwise specified in this 
Chapter or Chapter 5.06, an applicant seeking a construction deferral must also submit a development plan to be approved 
by the city assessor. Upon construction of the economic development property satisfactory to the City, the City may change 
deferral under this subsection into an exemption which shall not exceed the remainder of the five-year period from the date 
the deferral was approved.  

F. If the property to be used for economic development is not developed or created within the time specified in the application, 
the City may immediately terminate the deferral and take any other action permitted by law including, but not limited to, 
collecting all property taxes accrued on the property during the construction deferral, collecting penalties and interest on the 
taxes owed from the date such taxes would have been due if no deferral had been granted, and attaching a tax lien to the 
property. 
 

EXEMPTIONS 
 
REQUIREMENTS 
1) The economic development property tax exemptions outlined here apply only to improvements to real property. The 

exemptions do not apply to the value of land on which the development or redevelopment is to be located.   
2) The exemptions under no circumstances transfer following sale of the real property for which an exemption has been granted. 
3) All development that is granted an exemption per the terms set forth below and entails construction must be subject to 

inspection as required by the Codes adopted by the authority having jurisdiction (the State Fire Marshal) at the cost of the 
Applicant.   

 
Single-Family Residential 
The Single-Family Residential Exemption is an eight-year exemption from the property taxes owed on the first one hundred fifty 
thousand dollars of the assessed value of improvements for the construction of single-family homes to include standalone homes and 
townhomes. If granted, the exemption goes into effect upon substantial completion of the development for which the exemption is 
sought.  
 
OR 

 
The Single-Family Residential Exemption is a five-year exemption of 100 percent of the taxes owed on the assessed value of 
improvements for the construction of single-family homes to include standalone homes and townhomes.  If granted, the exemption 
goes into effect upon substantial completion of the development for which the exemption is sought. 
 
Affordable Housing 
The Affordable Housing Exemption is an exemption of 100 percent of the property taxes owed on the assessed value of the 
improvements under the circumstances and for the durations detailed below.  If granted, the exemption goes into effect upon substantial 
completion of the development for which the exemption is sought. 
 

Maximum Eight-Year Exemption Maximum Twelve-Year Exemption Maximum Fifteen-Year Exemption 
Multifamily housing of any kind (duplex, 
triplex, condominiums, apartments) 
offered for rent at market rates for 
duration of exemption. No requirement to 
establish below market rate rents.  

Multifamily housing consisting of four 
units or more, with at least 25 percent of 
units offered for rent as affordable units 
for duration of exemption.  

Multifamily housing consisting of four 
units or more, with at least 25 percent of 
units providing three bedrooms or more, 
offered for rent as affordable units for 
duration of exemption. 

 
Multifamily Residential 
The Multifamily Residential Exemption is an exemption of 100 percent of the property taxes owed on the assessed value of 
improvements under the circumstances and for the durations detailed below.  If granted, the exemption goes into effect upon substantial 
completion of the development for which the exemption is sought.   
 

Five-Year Exemption Eight-Year Exemption Twelve-Year Exemption 
Construction of one or more duplexes or 
provision/installation of a new 
construction trailer home in an existing 
trailer home park. In either instance, the 
property must be some combination of 
owner-occupied, and/or offered on a 

Construction of multifamily housing of 
fourplexes to eightplexes. Seventy-five 
percent of units must be owner-occupied 
or offered on a long-term rental basis 
(minimum 12-month lease) for the 
duration of the exemption. 

Construction of multifamily housing in 
excess of eight units, to include 
condominiums and apartments.  Seventy-
five percent of units must be some 
combination of owner-occupied and 
offered on a long-term rental basis 

72



 

long-term rental basis (minimum 12-
month lease) for the duration of the 
exemption. 

(minimum 12-month lease) for the 
duration of the exemption.  

 
Mixed-Use Development 
The Mixed-Use Development Exemption is an exemption of 100 percent of the property taxes owed on the assessed value of 
improvements for the construction of mixed-use development for a period of fifteen years.  If granted, the exemption goes into effect 
upon substantial completion of the development for which the exemption is sought.   
 
Commercial Development  
The Commercial Development Exemption is an exemption of 100 percent of the property taxes owed on the assessed value of 
improvements for new commercial or industrial construction for a period of ten years.  If granted, the exemption goes into effect upon 
substantial completion of the development for which the exemption is sought.  
 
Rehabilitation  
The Rehabilitation Exemption is an exemption of 100 percent of the property taxes owed on the assessed value of improvements to 
blighted commercial or residential properties.  The exemption requires the redevelopment of a parcel, in the form of either significant 
upgrades or full replacement of existing blighted improvements.  The Rehabilitation Exemption can be applied for prior to January 15 
of the year in which construction is meant to encourage the redevelopment of blighted properties in the City.  If the proposed 
development is not completed upon the timeline set forth in the Applicant’s application, the one-year exemption shall be revoked, and 
all taxes previously waived per the exemption will become due immediately.  

DEFINITIONS 

The following definitions pertain only for purposes of obtaining the property tax exemptions contained herein.  They are not 
applicable to any land use or zoning determinations made by the city under the Cordova Municipal Code.  

“Affordable Units”: Units offered at rent or sales prices associated with the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development’s 
“low income” designation (currently rent affordable for families earning no more than 80 percent of Area Median Income 
(“AMI”)).   

“Blighted Property”:  Commercial or residential property that meets one of the following requirements: (1) within the last five 
years, has been the subject of an order by the City or other government agency requiring environmental remediation of the property 
or requiring the property to be vacated, condemned, or demolished by reason of noncompliance with laws, ordinances, or 
regulations; or (2) has a structure on it built more than 25 years ago.  

“Commercial Construction”: Any non-residential development appropriate for commercially zoned areas within the City.  

“Industrial Construction”: Any non-residential development appropriate for industrially zoned areas within the City.  

“Mixed-Use Development”: Construction resulting in both residential and commercial spaces within the same development, and 
maintaining a commercial use at street level.  

“Substantial Completion”: The point in time at which the property may be occupied for its intended purpose per final inspection.    

 
PROCEDURES FOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION 

Any Applicant requesting an Economic Development Property Tax Exemption must first submit two (2) original applications 
with appropriate attachments to the City Clerk.  Please submit your application to the following address:  

 
City of Cordova 
PO Box 1210 
Cordova, Alaska 99574 
Attn: City Clerk 

Upon submittal of the application, the City Clerk or designee shall review, and within ten (10) days of submission, notify the 
Applicant of any facial deficiencies.

73



 

OFFICIAL USE ONLY 

 
Application #:  Date Received:  

 
 
 
 
 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION 
Cordova Municipal Code Section 5.07.060 

NOTICE: Application is to be filed with the City Clerk no later than January 15 of the year the exemption is desired to take effect. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
SECTION 1 – APPLICANT NAME AND MAILING ADDRESS 

Name of Applicant: 

Type of Applicant: Individual      Sole Proprietorship             Partnership Corporation Other (explain) 
 

Current Mailing Address: 
 
 

 
Phone: Email: 

 
 
SECTION 2 – PROPERTY OWNER 

Full Legal Name of the Owner of the Property: Title: 
 

Phone:  

Email Address: 
 
 
SECTION 3 – CONTACT PERSON 

Contact Person for this Application: Title: 
 

Phone:  

Email Address: 
 
 
SECTION 4 – EXACT LOCATION FOR WHICH EXEMPTION IS SOUGHT 

Legal description of property for which this application is filed: 

Property Parcel Identification Number(s): 

 
Street Address of this property

74



 

SECTION 5 – PLANNED CONSTRUCTION 

Please describe the nature of the planned development at the Property, per the exemption guidelines above:  

 

 
 
SECTION 6 – COMMENCEMENT OF CONSTRUCTION 

Date you began, or will begin, construction at this location: 
 
  
 
 
SECTION 7 – PLANNED COMPLETION 

 
Date you plan to complete construction and/or qualify for a certificate of occupancy:  

 
 
 
 
SECTION 8 – TYPE OF DEVELOPMENT 

Type of Development:  Condominiums/Townhomes Single-Family Home Mixed-Use Residential/Commercial 

   Commercial   Rehabilitation 

Units:  

Description of improvements to real property for which exemption is requested: 

 
 

SECTION 9 – LENGTH AND AMOUNT OF EXEMPTION 
 

Note: Applicant may request an exemption for the term and amount described in detail above. All exemptions pertain to the 
assessed value of all qualifying improvements to real property – no exemption shall be granted for land. Length and amount of 
exemption approved is at the sole discretion of the Cordova City Council. 

Exemption sought:  

Total number of years that applicant requests exemption: 
 
      
  
SECTION 10 – OTHER CONSIDERATIONS FOR EXEMPTION DETERMINATION 

Amount of total capital investment in the development or redevelopment of the Property: 

Commitment to local procurement and local hiring: 

 
List any products or services that are critical to your business that are not available locally or regionally: 

Commitment to increasing the availability of affordable housing:   

 

75



 

SECTION 11 – RECORDS AND CERTIFICATES 
 
All inspection records and certificates obtained for the development or redevelopment of the Property are described here, and 
provided by Applicant as Attachment 1 to this Application:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SECTION 12 – OCCUPANCY 
 
All listings, leases, and occupancy reports showing how Applicant qualifies for exemptions requiring proof of occupancy shall be 
provided by Applicant as Attachment 2 to this Application.  
 
 
 
CONTINUING PERFORMANCE: 
EVIDENCE OF SATISFACTION OF ONGOING EXEMPTION CRITERIA SET FORTH IN THIS APPLICATION MUST BE 
PROVIDED IN THE ANNUAL REPORT FORM TO MAINTAIN THE PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION.  FAILURE TO 
DEMONSTRATE ONGOING SATISFCATION OF THE EXEMPTION CRITERIA ON AN ANNUAL BASIS WILL RESULT IN 
THE REVOCATION OF THE EXEMPTION AND ALL BACK TAXES FROM THE TIME OF QUALIFICATION COMING DUE 
AND PAYABLE.

76



 

DATE OF APPLICATION: 
I hereby request the adoption of an ordinance granting an economic development property tax exemption on the above property. 
In addition to the information included herein (including attachments, if any), I agree to furnish such other information as the 
City Council, City Clerk, or the City Assessor may request in regard to the exemption requested herein. I hereby certify that the 
information stated in this economic development property tax exemption application is true, correct and complete to the best of 
my knowledge and belief, including any attached statements, schedules, etc. (If prepared by someone other than the Property 
Owner, the owner’s declaration is based on all information of which he/she has any knowledge.) 

Owner Name and Title: 
 

Signature: 
 

Type or Print Name: 

Date: 
 

PREPARER/AUTHORIZED AGENT – Name and Address: 
 
 

Telephone:  
 

E-mail: 

Signature: 

Type or Print Name: 
 

Date: 

State of Alaska 

On this, the  day of   , 20  , before me a notary public, the undersigned officer, personally appeared
  , known to me (or satisfactorily proven) to be the person whose name is subscribed to 
the within instrument, and acknowledged that he executed the same for the purposed therein contained. 

In witness hereof, I hereunto set my hand and official seal. 
 
 
 

(Stamp/Seal) 
Notary Public 

 
 

I CERTIFY: That the information I am supplying on and with this form is TRUE and CORRECT.  I authorize the City 
of Cordova to obtain information necessary to verify my eligibility. If any person knowingly makes any false 
representations in any submission to the City related to an initial application for or review of a tax exemption or deferral 
under Chapter 5.07, that person shall be punishable by a fine as set forth in Chapter 1.28, of up to $1,000/per fine, per 
day. Any misstatement of or error in fact may render an application null and void and may be cause for the revocation 
of any tax exemption or deferral adopted in reliance on such information. 

 
Signature: ______________________________________   Date: ____________________ 

77



 

CITY ASSESSOR’S USE ONLY 

Total revenue available to the city for the current fiscal year from ad valorem tax sources: $ 
 

Revenue lost to the City for the current fiscal year by virtue of all economic development property tax exemptions previously 
granted:  $ 

 
Estimate of the revenue which would be lost to the City during the current fiscal year if the exemption applied for were granted 
and the property for which the exemption is requested would otherwise have been subject to taxation: 
$ 

Estimate of the taxable value lost to the City if the exemption applied for was granted:  

Improvements to real property: $  
 

I have determined that the stated use of the Property listed above meets the definition, as defined by Cordova Municipal Code 
5.07.060, of economic development, namely the development or redevelopment of real property intended to result in an outcome 
that causes an increase in, or avoids a decrease of, economic activity, gross domestic product, or the City tax base in such a 
manner that City Council has determined, per the guidelines set forth herein, that an exemption or deferral from property tax is 
in the best interest of the Cordova community.  The exemption falls under the classification of:  
 
Single-Family Residential  ______     Affordable Housing ______            Multifamily Residential ______       

     Mixed-Use Development ______       Commercial Development ______  Rehabilitation _______ 

Last year for which exemption may be applied: 

 
Signature, City Assessor: Date: 

78



 

 
 

 
 
 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY TAX 
EXEMPTION 

ANNUAL REPORT 
 

 
FOR USE BY PARTIES RECEIVING ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

PROPERTY TAX 
EXEMPTIONS GRANTED FROM THE 

 
CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA 

 
 
 
 
 
The recipient of an economic development property tax exemption shall complete and submit this report 

to the City Clerk on or before January 15 of each year for which the exemption is in effect. 

79



 

The recipient of an economic development property tax exemption shall complete and submit this report to the City Clerk on or 
before January 15 of each year for which the exemption is in effect. 

 
Please submit both a hard copy and electronic copy to the following addresses:  
 
City of Cordova 
PO Box 1210 
Cordova, Alaska 99574 
Attn: City Clerk 
 
cityclerk@cityofcordova.net 
 

 

80



 

OFFICIAL USE ONLY 

 
Report #:  Date Received:  

 
 
 
 

FOR EXEMPTION PERIOD: January 1,  to December 31,  
 
 
 

SECTION 1 – APPLICANT NAME AND MAILING ADDRESS 

Name and Business Mailing Address: 
 

Phone: Email: 
 
 

SECTION 2 – PROPERTY OWNER 

Full Legal Name of the Property Owner: Title: 
 

Phone:  
 

Email Address: 
 
 

SECTION 3 –EXACT LOCATION OF PROPERTY 

Legal description of property for which this application is filed: 

Property Parcel Identification Number(s): 

 
Street Address of this property: 

 
 
 

SECTION 5 – REAL PROPERTY 

Description of improvements to real property for which exemption was received: 

 
Date of commencement of construction of improvements: 

 
 
    Date of completion of construction of improvements:  
 
 

SECTION 6 – OCCUPANCY 

All listings, leases, and occupancy reports showing how Applicant continues to qualify for exemptions requiring proof of 
occupancy or offering shall be provided by Applicant as Attachment 1 to this Annual Report.  

81



 

SECTION 7 – DATE OF ANNUAL REPORT 
I agree to furnish such other information as the Cordova City Council, City Clerk, or City Assessor may request in regard to the 
economic development property tax exemption granted. I hereby certify that the information stated in this Annual Report is true, 
correct and complete to the best of my knowledge and belief, including any attached statements, schedules, etc. (If prepared by 
someone other than the Property Owner, the owner’s declaration is based on all information of which he/she has any knowledge.) 

Owner Name and Title: 

Signature: 
 

Type or Print Name: 
 

Date: 

PREPARER/AUTHORIZED AGENT – Name and Address: 
 
 

Telephone:  

E-mail: 
 

Signature: 

Type or Print Name: 

Date: 
 

State of Alaska 

On this, the  day of   , 20  , before me a notary public, the undersigned officer, personally appeared
  , known to me (or satisfactorily proven) to be the person whose name is subscribed to 
the within instrument, and acknowledged that he executed the same for the purposed therein contained. 

 
In witness hereof, I hereunto set my hand and official seal. 

 

 
(Stamp/Seal) 

 
 
 

I CERTIFY: That the information I am supplying on and with this form is TRUE and CORRECT.  I authorize the City 
of Cordova to obtain information necessary to verify my eligibility. If any person knowingly makes any false 
representations in any submission to the City related to an initial application for or review of a tax exemption or deferral 
under Chapter 5.07, that person shall be punishable by a fine as set forth in Chapter 1.28, of up to $1,000/per fine, per 
day. Any misstatement of or error in fact may render an application null and void and may be cause for the revocation 
of any tax exemption or deferral adopted in reliance on such information. 

 
Signature: ______________________________________   Date: ____________________ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

82



Sub Ord 1224 – Purchase and Sale Agreement for Lot 4A, Block 5, North Fill Development Park  
Page 1 of 2  

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM # 16 
City Council Meeting Date: 11/20/24 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  CCOOMMMMUUNNIICCAATTIIOONN  FFOORRMM 
                             
 
FROM: Kevin Johnson, Public Works Director / Acting City Planner 
 
DATE: 11/8/24 
 
ITEM: Substitute Ordinance 1224 – Purchase and Sale Agreement for Lot 4A, Block 5, 

North Fill Development Park, First Reading 
   
NEXT STEP: Vote on approval of Substitute Ordinance 1224 
                
   
 __X__    ORDINANCE   _____ INFORMATION 
 ___ __   RESOLUTION   _____ MOTION 
                             
                                                                                                     
I.  REQUEST OR ISSUE:   Requested Actions: Decision on Substitute Ordinance 1224 
    Legal Description: Lot 4A, Block 5, North Fill Development Park 
    Lot Area:  Approximate Area = 8,267 SF 
    Zoning:  Waterfront Industrial 
    Attachments:  Substitute Ordinance 1224, Purchase and Sale 

Agreement and Exhibits 
 
II. RECOMMENDED ACTION / NEXT STEP:  Staff suggest the following motion: “I move to adopt 
Substitute Ordinance 1224.” 
 
III. FISCAL IMPACTS:  Applicant will pay $120,000 to purchase the property outright. The property will 
be moved onto the tax rolls under private ownership. 
  
IV. BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  A letter of interest was received in the fall of 2023 from Paul 
and Linda Kelly requesting to purchase Lot 4A, Block 5, North Fill Development Park, colloquially know 
as “the impound lot”. The letter of interest was taken through the land disposal process and ultimately 
following a Request for Proposals process the Kelly’s were chosen as the person to negotiate a Lease with 
Option to Purchase with. 
 

83



Sub Ord 1224 – Purchase and Sale Agreement for Lot 4A, Block 5, North Fill Development Park  
Page 2 of 2  

The Kelly’s have proposed to build a two-story storage unit facility totaling 7,200 square feet, with the 
value of the improvements equaling $750,000. Additionally, they will potentially include at least one 
apartment unit. 
 
At the 11/6/24 City Council meeting, the Council directed staff to change the sale of the lot from a Lease 
with Option to Purchase to a direct sale of the land. This decision was made because the Council 
determined that it was in the best interest of the City to get the full purchase price up front so that the 
money can be used immediately for the development of the new impound lot. Attached, as directed by 
Council is a Purchase and Sale Agreement for consideration. Legal staff developed this purchase and sale 
agreement with protections for buyer and seller and in conformity with the request for proposals that the 
City had published for this property disposal.  
 
As part of the sale of this land staff is preparing to publish a Request for Proposals to construct a new 
secured impound lot at the baler facility. The sale of the current impound lot will be used to offset the 
costs of the new impound lot. The proposed impound lot has already gotten approval from the Alaska 
Department of Natural Resources as the city leases the land where the bailer is located from the State. 
 
V. LEGAL ISSUES:  The Purchase and Sale Agreement has been reviewed by the City’s legal counsel and 
has been written in a way that ensures compliance with the RFP that was published for the disposal.  
  
VI. SUMMARY AND ALTERNATIVES:  City Council could choose to not approve the Purchase and 
Sale Agreement, direct staff to amend the agreement, or choose not to dispose of the property at all. 
 
VII. ATTACHMENTS: 

A. Substitute Ordinance 1224 
B. Purchase and Sale Agreement and Exhibits 

84



Substitute Ord. 1224 
Page 1 of 2 

CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA 
SUBSTITUTE ORDINANCE 1224 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA, 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A PURCHASE AND SALE 
AGREEMENT WITH PAUL AND LINDA KELLY, DOING BUSINESS AS BAYSIDE 

STORAGE, FOR PROPERTY DESCRIBED AS LOT 4A, NORTH FILL DEVELOPMENT 
PARK ADDITION #2 

 WHEREAS, it is in the City of Cordova’s best interest to sell Lot 4A, North Fill Development 
Park Addition #2 (“Property”) to Paul and Linda Kelly doing business as Bayside Storage, for the 
purposes specified in the Purchase and Sale Agreement (Attached as Exhibit A, the “Purchase 
Agreement”) between the City of Cordova, Alaska (“City”) and Paul and Linda Kelly doing business as 
Bayside Storage; and 

WHEREAS, Paul and Linda Kelly have proposed to develop the lot with a two story, 7,200 
square foot, storage unit facility; and 

WHEREAS, the value of the proposed development is said to be $750,000; and  

WHEREAS, the City sees a need for continued development in the Waterfront Industrial Zone 
in which this property is located; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed development is of need to the community and will benefit both those 
residing in Cordova as well as those that do business in Cordova, specifically the fishing fleet; and 

WHEREAS, the direct sale of the Property to the purchaser will benefit the City by providing 
more immediate funds necessary for the construction of a new impound lot for use by the City; and 

WHEREAS, the development of this Property and its transfer to private ownership will further 
benefit the City by increasing both sales and property tax collection. 

NOW, THERFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Cordova, that: 

Section 1.  The City Manager is authorized and directed to enter into the Purchase Agreement 
with Paul and Linda Kelly doing business as Bayside Storage for the purchase and sale of the Property 
in accordance with the terms of the Purchase Agreement as attached as Exhibit A to this ordinance.  The 
form and content of the Agreement now before this meeting is in all respects authorized, approved and 
confirmed by this ordinance, and the City Manager hereby is authorized, empowered and directed to 
execute and deliver the Purchase Agreement reflecting the terms of the purchase and sale transaction on 
behalf of the City, in substantially the form and content now before this meeting but with such changes, 
modifications, additions and deletions therein as the City Manager shall deem necessary, desirable or 
appropriate, the execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of approval of any and all changes, 
modifications, additions or deletions therein from the form and content of said documents now before 
this meeting, and from and after the execution and delivery of said documents, the City Manager hereby 
is authorized, empowered and directed to do all acts and things and to execute all documents as may be 
necessary to carry out and comply with the provisions of the Purchase Agreement as executed. 

85



Substitute Ord. 1224 
Page 2 of 2 

Section 2.  The disposal of the property interest authorized by this ordinance is subject to the 
requirements of City Charter Section 5-17. Therefore, if one or more referendum petitions with 
signatures are properly filed within one month after the passage and publication of this ordinance, this 
ordinance shall not go into effect until the petition or petitions are finally found to be illegal and/or 
insufficient, or, if any such petition is found legal and sufficient, until the ordinance is approved at an 
election by a majority of the qualified voters voting on the question. If no referendum petition with 
signatures is filed, this ordinance shall go into effect one month after its passage and publication. 

Section 3.  This ordinance shall be enacted in accordance with Section 2.13 of the Charter of the 
City of Cordova, Alaska, and published within ten (10) days after its passage.  

1st reading of Ordinance 1224:  November 6, 2024  
1st reading of Substitute Ordinance 1224: November 20, 2024 
2nd reading of and public hearing for Substitute Ordinance 1224: ____________, 2024 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS ____ DAY OF ________________ 2024. 

 __________________________________ 
David Allison, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
__________________________________ 
Susan Bourgeois, City Clerk 

86



PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT Page 1 of 16 

PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT 

THIS PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is entered into as 
of November ____, 2024 (the “Effective Date”), by and between the CITY OF CORDOVA, 
an Alaska municipal corporation (“Seller” or the “City”), whose address is P.O. Box 1210, 
Cordova, Alaska 99574, and PAUL KELLY and LINDA KELLY, doing business as BAYSIDE 
STORAGE (“Purchaser”), whose address is P.O. Box 265, Cordova, Alaska 99574 

WHEREAS, Seller is the owner of certain real property located in the City of 
Cordova, Alaska, and legally described as Lot 4A, North Fill Development Park Addition 
#2, filed under the official plat thereof, Plat # 2001-10, Records of the Cordova Recording 
District, Third Judicial District, State of Alaska, and also known by Assessor’s Parcel No. 
02-060-128; and

WHEREAS, Purchaser has funds to pay the cost of acquiring the Property; and 

WHEREAS, Purchaser desires to buy from Seller, and Seller desires to sell to 
Purchaser, the Property, subject to and in accordance with the terms and provisions 
hereinafter set forth. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing Recitals (which are 
incorporated herein by this reference), the mutual covenants and conditions hereinafter 
set forth, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 
are hereby acknowledged, Seller and Purchaser hereby agree as follows: 

1. Purchase and Sale.  Seller hereby agrees to sell, assign and convey to
Purchaser, and Purchaser hereby agrees to purchase from Seller, all of Seller’s right, title 
and interest in and to that certain real Property located in the Cordova Recording District, 
Third Judicial District, State of Alaska, more particularly described in Exhibit A attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, together with any and all improvements 
thereon, and all rights, privileges, easements and appurtenances thereto (the “Property”). 

2. The Purchase Price.

(a) The purchase price for the Property is One Hundred Twenty
Thousand Dollars and 00/100 Cents ($120,000.00) (the “Purchase Price”) and shall be 
paid to Seller by Purchaser at the Closing (as that term is defined in Section 10 below) 
as follows: 

(1) A One Thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($1,000) non-refundable
deposit received by Seller on _________________ (the “Initial Deposit”).  The Initial 
Deposit shall be applied to the payment of the Purchase Price at Closing, but in no event 
will it be refunded to Purchaser if the sale contemplated by this Agreement does not close 
for any reason. 

87



PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT Page 2 of 16 

(2) The balance of One Hundred Nineteen Thousand and 00/100
Dollars ($119,000.00), together with all costs incurred by the City in connection with the 
sale of the Property, including Closing Costs, payable at Closing. 

3. Title.

(a) Within ten (10) days following the Effective Date, Seller shall order
from Alyeska Title Guaranty Agency, Inc. (“Title Company”), a preliminary title report 
pertaining to the Property (the “Commitment”), together with legible (to the extent 
available) copies of all documents relating to the title exceptions referred to in such 
Commitment. 

(b) Within fifteen (15) days after the delivery of the Commitment by
Seller or the Title Company, Purchaser shall notify Seller in writing of any title exceptions 
identified in the Commitment of which Purchaser disapproves.  Any exception not 
disapproved in writing within said fifteen (15)-day period shall be deemed approved by 
Purchaser, and shall constitute a “Permitted Exception” hereunder.  Purchaser and Seller 
hereby agree that all non-delinquent property taxes and assessments, any Internal 
Revenue Service liens, and the Deed of Trust shall constitute “Permitted Exceptions.” 
Within ten (10) days after receipt of Purchaser’s written notice of disapproved title 
exceptions, if any, Seller shall notify Purchaser in writing of any disapproved title 
exceptions which Seller is unable or unwilling to cause to be removed prior to or at 
Closing.  Seller’s failure to give such notice shall be deemed an election not to remove 
any disapproved title exceptions.  With respect to such exceptions, Purchaser then shall 
elect, by giving written notice to Seller and Escrow Agent within ten (10) days thereafter, 
(x) to terminate this Agreement, or (y) to waive their disapproval of such exceptions, in
which case such exceptions shall then be deemed to be Permitted Exceptions.
Purchaser’s failure to give such notice shall be deemed an election to waive the
disapproval of any such exception.  In the event Purchaser elects to terminate this
Agreement in accordance with (x) in this subsection, the Initial Deposit, without interest,
shall be refunded to Purchaser within thirty (30) days; provided, however, that Purchaser
shall be responsible for any title or escrow cancellation fees.

4. No Warranties.  Purchaser shall purchase the Property based on
Purchaser’s own prior investigation and examination of the Property (or Purchaser’s 
election not to do so).  Purchaser agrees, represents, and warrants that except as 
expressly contained in this Agreement, no representations or warranties by or on behalf 
of Seller, express or implied, statutory or otherwise, are or have been made to the 
Purchaser as to the condition of the Property or improvements situated thereon, the 
contents thereof, any restrictions related to the development or use thereof, the 
applicability of any governmental requirements pertaining thereto, including but not limited 
to environmental requirements, the presence or absence of Hazardous Substances, 
presence of groundwater, the suitability or fitness thereof for any use or purpose, the 
Property’s compliance with federal, state and/or municipal laws, or any other matter or 
thing affecting or related to the Property in any way, and the Purchaser accepts the same 
IN AN “AS IS” PHYSICAL CONDITION AND IN AN “AS IS” STATE OF REPAIR, WITH 
ALL FAULTS. Seller has agreed to sell the Property on the terms specified herein in 

88



PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT Page 3 of 16 

reliance upon the foregoing limitations of Seller’s liabilities, which are material to Seller, 
and Seller would not have entered into this Agreement without such limitations.    

5. Representations, Warranties and Covenants of Purchaser.  In addition
to any other representations, warranties, and covenants contained herein, Purchaser 
represents and warrants to Seller that the following matters are true and correct as of the 
execution of this Agreement and also will be true and correct as of the Closing: 

(a) This Agreement is, and all the documents executed by Purchaser
which are to be delivered to Seller at the Closing will be, duly authorized, executed, and 
delivered by Purchaser, and is and will be legal, valid, and binding obligations of 
Purchaser enforceable against Purchaser in accordance with their respective terms and 
do not and will not violate any provisions of any agreement to which either Purchaser is 
a party or to which they are subject. 

6. Conditions Precedent to Closing.

(a) The following shall be conditions precedent to Seller’s obligation to
consummate the purchase and sale transaction contemplated herein (the “Seller’s 
Conditions Precedent”): 

(1) Purchaser shall not have terminated this Agreement in
accordance with Section 3, Section 12 or Section 13 of this Agreement within the time 
periods described in said Sections. 

(2) Purchaser shall have delivered to Escrow Agent, prior to or at
the Closing, for disbursement as directed hereunder, all cash or other immediately 
available funds due from Purchaser in accordance with this Agreement. 

(3) There shall be no uncured breach of any of Purchaser’s
representations or warranties set forth in Section 6, or any other breach of this Agreement, 
as of the date of Closing. 

(4) Purchaser shall have delivered to Escrow Agent the items
described in Section 8. 

(5) The timely performance by Purchaser of each and every
obligation imposed upon Purchaser hereunder. 

The conditions set forth in this Section 6(a) are solely for the benefit of Seller and 
may be waived only by Seller and only in writing.  Seller shall, at all times have the right 
to waive any of these conditions. 

(b) The following shall be conditions precedent to Purchaser’s obligation
to consummate the purchase and sale transaction contemplated herein (the “Purchaser’s 
Conditions Precedent”): 

89



PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT Page 4 of 16 

(1) Purchaser shall not have terminated this Agreement in
accordance with Section 4, Section 12 or Section 13 of this Agreement within the time 
periods described in said Sections.  

(2) Title Company shall be committed to issue, at the Closing, an
owner’s policy of title insurance (the “Title Policy”), insuring Purchaser’s interest in the 
Property, dated the day of the Closing, with liability in the amount of the Purchase Price, 
and a lender’s policy of title insurance (the “Lender’s Policy”), with liability in the amount 
secured by the Deed of Trust, dated the day of Closing, subject only to the Permitted 
Exceptions.  

(3) Seller shall have delivered the items described in Section 7.

(4) The timely performance by Seller of each and every obligation
imposed upon Seller hereunder. 

The conditions set forth in this Section 6(b) are solely for the benefit of Purchaser 
and may be waived only by Purchaser and only in writing.  Purchaser shall, at all times 
have the right to waive any of these conditions. 

7. Seller’s Closing Deliveries.  At or prior to the Closing, Seller shall deliver
to Escrow Agent the following: 

(a) A Quitclaim Deed with Right of Reentry and First Refusal in the form
attached hereto as Exhibit B, executed by Seller conveying the Property to Purchaser 
(the “Deed”).  

(b) A closing statement prepared by the Title Company itemizing and
approving all receipts and disbursements made in connection with Closing. 

(c) Any other documents, instruments or agreements reasonably
necessary to effectuate the transaction contemplated by this Agreement. 

8. Purchaser’s Closing Deliveries.  At or prior to the Closing, Purchaser shall
deliver to Escrow Agent the following: 

(a) The balance of the Purchase Price, payable as provided in Section
2, together with such other sums as Escrow Agent shall require to pay Closing costs, 
prorations, reimbursements and adjustments as set forth in Section 9 and Section 11, in 
immediately available funds. 

(b) Any other documents, instruments or agreements reasonably
necessary to effectuate the transaction contemplated by this Agreement and/or as may 
be required by the Title Company. 

9. Prorations and Adjustments.  The following shall be prorated and
adjusted between Seller and Purchaser as of the day of the Closing, except as otherwise 
specified:   

90



PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT Page 5 of 16 

(a) General real estate, personal property and ad valorem taxes and
assessments, and any improvement or other bonds encumbering the Property, for the 
current tax year for the Property.  Purchaser is not responsible for delinquent real estate 
taxes, personal property taxes, ad valorem taxes, or assessments arising prior to Closing. 

(b) Utility charges, if any.  Purchaser acknowledges and agrees that
Seller shall be entitled to all refunds of utility deposits with respect to the Property and 
that such amounts are not to be assigned to Purchaser in connection with the sale of the 
Property.  However, Purchaser will be responsible for any additional assessments 
effective prior to Closing, of which notice is received after Closing. 

For purposes of calculating prorations, Purchaser shall be deemed to be in title to 
the Property, and, therefore entitled to the income therefrom and responsible for the 
expenses thereof for the entire day upon which the Closing occurs.  All such prorations 
shall be made on the basis of the actual number of days of the month which shall have 
elapsed as of the day of the Closing and based upon the actual number of days in the 
month and a three hundred sixty-five (365) day year.  In no event will there be any 
proration of insurance premiums under Seller’s existing policies of insurance relating to 
the Property, and Purchaser acknowledges and agrees that none of Seller’s insurance 
policies (or any proceeds payable thereunder) will be assigned to Purchaser at the 
Closing, and Purchaser shall be solely obligated to obtain any and all insurance that they 
deem necessary or desirable.  The provisions of this Section 9 shall survive the Closing. 

10. Closing.  The purchase and sale contemplated herein shall close on or
before one hundred twenty (120) days after the Effective Date (the “Closing”) or on such 
other specific date and time mutually agreed to by the parties.  As used herein, the term 
“Closing” means the date and time that the Deed is recorded in the Cordova Recording 
District, Third Judicial District, State of Alaska.  The Closing shall occur at the offices of 
the Escrow Agent as set forth in Section 16(m), or such other place as may be agreed by 
the parties. 

11. Closing Costs.  Purchaser shall pay the fee for recording the Deed, the
premium for the Title Policy and Lender’s Policy, and for all fees and costs Seller incurred 
to third parties in any way relating to the purchase and sale transaction involving the 
Property, including without limitation costs of appraisal, attorney’s fees and costs, 
surveying and platting fees and costs, closing costs and escrow fees, and any other fees 
or costs required by the Cordova Municipal Code (collectively, the “Closing Costs”).  
Purchaser shall bear the expense of Purchaser’s own counsel.  Unless otherwise 
specified herein, if the sale of the Property contemplated hereunder does not occur 
because of a default on the part of Purchaser, all escrow cancellation and title fees shall 
be paid by Purchaser; if the sale of the Property does not occur because of a default on 
the part of Seller, all escrow cancellation and title fees shall be paid by Seller. 

12. Risk of Loss.  If prior to the Closing, any portion of the Property is subject
to a taking, or eminent domain proceedings are commenced, by public authority (other 
than Seller) against all or any portion of the Property, Purchaser shall have the right, 
exercisable by giving notice to Seller within ten (10) business days after receiving written 

91



PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT Page 6 of 16 

notice of such taking (but in any event prior to the Closing), either (i) to terminate this 
Agreement, in which case neither party shall have any further rights or obligations 
hereunder (except as may be expressly provided to the contrary elsewhere in this 
Agreement), and any money (including, without limitation, the Initial Deposit but without 
any interest accrued thereon) or documents in escrow shall be returned to the party 
depositing the same, and Purchaser and Seller each shall be responsible for one-half of 
any title or escrow cancellation fee, or (ii) to accept the Property in its then condition, 
without any abatement or reduction in the Purchase Price, and receive an assignment of 
all of Seller’s rights to any condemnation award payable by reason of such taking.  
Purchaser’s failure to elect timely shall be deemed an election of (ii).  If Purchaser elects 
to proceed under clause (ii) above, Seller shall not compromise, settle or adjust any 
claims to such award without Purchaser’s prior written consent.  As used in this Section 
12, “taking” shall mean any transfer of the Property or any portion thereof to a 
governmental entity (other than Seller) or other party with appropriate authority, by 
exercise of the power of eminent domain. 

13. Default.

(a) No party shall be deemed to be in default hereunder unless such
party fails to cure an alleged default within ten (10) days after receipt from the other party 
of written notice thereof; provided, however, that (i) if such alleged default is not 
susceptible of being cured within said ten (10)-day period, such party shall not be deemed 
in default hereunder so long as such party commences to cure the alleged default within 
said ten (10)-day period and diligently prosecutes the same to completion within thirty 
(30) days; and (ii) no notice shall be required or cure period permitted in the event the
alleged default is a failure to close the transaction contemplated hereby at the Closing.

(b) In the event of a default by Seller hereunder, Purchaser’s remedies
shall be limited to (i) terminating this Agreement by written notice to Seller, in which event 
the Initial Deposit shall be returned to Purchaser and neither party shall have any further 
rights, obligations, or liabilities hereunder, or (ii) enforcing Seller’s obligations hereunder 
by a suit for specific performance, in which event Purchaser shall be entitled to such 
injunctive relief as may be necessary to prevent Seller’s disposition of the Property 
pending final judgment in such suit.  

(c) In the event of a default by Purchaser hereunder, Seller shall be
entitled, to terminate this Agreement by written notice to Purchaser, in which event, the 
non-refundable Initial Deposit shall be retained by Seller as liquidated damages; 
thereafter, neither party shall have any further rights, obligations, or liabilities hereunder. 
The parties acknowledge and agree that the actual damages in such event are uncertain 
in amount and difficult to ascertain, and that said amount of liquidated damages was 
reasonably determined. 

14. Escrow.

(a) Instructions.  Within five (5) business days after execution of this
Agreement, Seller shall deposit a copy of this Agreement executed by both Purchaser 

92



PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT Page 7 of 16 

and Seller with Escrow Agent.  This Agreement, together with such further instructions, if 
any, as the parties shall provide to Escrow Agent by written agreement, shall constitute 
the escrow instructions.  If any requirements relating to the duties or obligations of Escrow 
Agent hereunder are not acceptable to Escrow Agent, or if Escrow Agent requires 
additional instructions, the parties hereto agree to make such deletions, substitutions and 
additions hereto as Seller and Purchaser shall mutually approve, which additional 
instructions shall not substantially alter the terms of this Agreement unless otherwise 
expressly agreed to by Seller and Purchaser.  

(b) Deposits into Escrow.  Seller shall make its deliveries into escrow in
accordance with Section 7.  Purchaser shall make their deliveries into escrow in 
accordance with Section 8.  Escrow Agent is hereby authorized to close the escrow only 
if and when:  (i) Escrow Agent has received all items to be delivered by Seller and 
Purchaser pursuant to Sections 7 and 8; and (ii) Title Company can and will issue the 
Title Policy concurrently with the Closing.  

(c) Close of Escrow.  Provided that Escrow Agent shall not have
received written notice in a timely manner from Purchaser or Seller of the failure of any 
condition to the Closing or of the termination of the escrow, and if and when Seller and 
Purchaser have deposited into escrow the matters required by this Agreement and Title 
Company can and will issue the Title Policy concurrently with the Closing, Escrow Agent 
shall: 

(1) Deliver to Seller the Purchase Price, including all Closing
Costs, after satisfying the prorations and adjustments to be paid by Seller pursuant to 
Section 9, if any. 

(2) Deliver to Purchaser the Quitclaim Deed by causing it to be
recorded in the Official Records of the Cordova Recording District, Third Judicial District, 
State of Alaska and immediately upon recording delivering to Purchaser a conformed 
copy of the Quitclaim Deed. 

(3) Deliver to Purchaser any funds deposited by Purchaser, and
any interest earned thereon, in excess of the amount required to be paid by Purchaser 
hereunder. 

(4) Deliver the Title Policy issued by Title Company to Purchaser.

15. Indemnification.

(a) General Indemnification.  Purchaser shall defend, indemnify, and
hold the Seller and its authorized representatives, agents, officers, and employees 
harmless from and against any and all actions, suits, claims, demands, penalties, fines, 
judgments, liabilities, settlements, damages, or other costs or expenses (including, 
without limitation, attorneys’ fees, court costs, litigation expenses, and consultant and 
expert fees) resulting from, arising out of, or related in any way to the Property, the sale 

93



PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT Page 8 of 16 

of the Property, or the contents of the Property, including claims relating to any personal 
property.  The obligations in this Section shall survive closing.   

(b) Environmental Release and Indemnification. The Seller makes no
representation or warranty whatsoever, whether express, implied, or statutory, regarding 
the presence or absence of any Hazardous Material (as hereafter defined) on the 
Property.  Purchaser releases the Seller and its authorized representatives, agents, 
officers, and employees from any and all actions, suits, claims, demands, penalties, fines, 
judgments, liabilities, settlements, damages, or other costs or expenses (including, 
without limitation, attorneys’ fees, court costs, litigation expenses, and consultant and 
expert fees) that result from the presence, use, keeping, storage, or disposal of 
Hazardous Material in, on, or about the Property, or that arise out of or result from 
Purchaser’s occupancy or use of the Property or the use or occupancy of the Property by 
Purchaser’s employees, agents, servants, customers, contractors, subcontractors, sub-
lessees, invitees (other than the City), or authorized representatives. This release 
includes, without limitation, any and all costs incurred due to any investigation of the 
Property or any cleanup, removal, or restoration mandated by a federal, state, or local 
agency or political subdivision, or by law or regulation. Purchaser agrees that it shall be 
fully liable for all costs and expenses related to the use, storage, and disposal of 
Hazardous Material generated, kept, or brought on the Property, whether by Purchaser, 
his, her or its employees, agents, servants, customers, contractors, subcontractors, sub-
lessees, invitees, or authorized representatives, or any other party. 

Purchaser shall defend, indemnify, and hold the Seller and its authorized 
representatives, agents, officers, and employees harmless from and against any and all 
claims, demands, penalties, fines, judgments, liabilities, settlements, damages, costs, or 
expenses (including, without limitation, attorneys’ fees, court costs, litigation expenses, 
and consultant and expert fees) of whatever kind or nature, known or unknown, 
contingent or otherwise, arising in whole or in part from or in any way related to:  (i) the 
presence, disposal, release, or threatened release of any such Hazardous Material on or 
from the Property, soil, water, ground water, vegetation, buildings, personal property, 
persons, animals, or otherwise; (ii) any personal injury or property damage arising out of 
or related to such Hazardous Material; (iii) any lawsuit brought or threatened, settlement 
reached, or government order relating to such Hazardous Material; and (iv) any violation 
of any laws applicable to such Hazardous Material.  

As used in this Agreement, “Hazardous Material” means any substance which is 
toxic, ignitable, reactive, or corrosive or which is regulated by any federal, state, or local 
law or regulation, as now in force or as may be amended from time to time, relating to the 
protection of human health or the environment, as well as any judgments, orders, 
injunctions, awards, decrees, covenants, conditions, or other restrictions or standards 
relating to the same. “Hazardous Material” includes any and all material or substances 
that are defined as “hazardous waste,’’ “extremely hazardous waste,’’ or a “hazardous 
substance” under any law or regulation. 

The obligations in this Section shall survive closing. 

94



PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT Page 9 of 16 

16. Development Plan and Right of Reentry.

(a) Site Development Plan; Reentry. In connection with its proposal to
acquire the Property, Purchaser proposed and has agreed to limit use of the Premises 
solely to constructing and maintaining the project detailed in the site development plan 
(the “Site Development Plan”), which is attached hereto and incorporated herein as 
Exhibit C.  The attached Site Development Plan has been approved by the Cordova City 
Council, and any proposed material change to the attached Site Development Plan by 
Purchaser requires written consent of both parties.  This Agreement does not confer any 
approval from the Cordova Planning Commission regarding the Site Development Plan 
or substitute for any approval process required in Cordova Municipal Code.   Rather it is 
Purchaser’s responsibility to ensure the Site Development Plan complies with all City 
Code requirements and procedures and must still submit a plan for approval by the 
Planning Commission as required by Cordova Municipal Code 18.33.130.   

(b) Exercise of Right of Reentry. Purchaser agrees that it must
substantially complete construction of the project set forth in the Site Development Plan 
attached as Exhibit C by a date that is five (5) years after the Effective Date of this 
Agreement. As used in this Agreement, the term “substantially complete” shall mean the 
stage of construction when the building(s), whose footprint is outlined in the Site 
Development Plan, including its structure, façade, windows, roof, heating, and lighting, 
are sufficiently complete so that Purchaser can occupy and use the building and install or 
cause the installation of all equipment required for the contemplated use thereof, and 
Purchaser has provided to the City certificates of inspection from certified inspectors 
showing that the following inspections have been performed and that construction meets 
the codes adopted by the City in Cordova Municipal Code Title 16. The following 
inspections are the minimum required: (1) Foundation Inspection; (2) Framing Inspection; 
(3) HVAC / Mechanical Inspection; (4) Electrical Inspection; (5) Plumbing Inspection; (4)
Fire / Life Safety Inspection; and (5) Final / Certificate of Occupancy Inspection.
Certificates of inspections and the listed of required corrections in the case of a failed
inspection, shall be provided to City within five (5) days of receiving each inspection
certificate or correction list. Seller shall have the right, at its sole option and discretion, to
reenter and regain ownership, title and possession of the Property (the “Right of
Reentry”), without any obligation to pay therefore or for any improvements made thereto,
in the event that the Purchaser fails to substantially complete the construction of the
project set forth in the Site Development Plan by a date that is five (5) years after the
Effective Date (the “Reentry Date”), and provided further that Seller complies with the
requirements applicable to it as set forth in Section 16(c).

(c) Exercise of Right of Reentry. To exercise its Right of Reentry, Seller
shall deliver to Purchaser (or its permitted successor, assigns, or transferees) a written 
notice providing Purchaser thirty (30) additional days (the “Reentry Notice Period”) to 
substantially complete construction of the project (the “Reentry Notice”), which notice 
shall be delivered to Purchaser no later than one hundred twenty (120) days after the 
Reentry Date.  If Purchaser fails to comply with Seller’s Reentry Notice and substantially 
complete construction of the project within the Reentry Notice Period, then title to the 
Property shall revert to the Seller and Purchaser agrees to execute and deliver to Seller, 

95



PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT Page 10 of 16 

within ten (10) days after the expiration of the Reentry Notice Period, a quitclaim deed 
and any other documents reasonably requested by Seller to convey record title to the 
Property to Seller.  Purchaser agrees to take all reasonable steps to ensure Seller 
acquires marketable title to the Property, including, without limitation, satisfying any lien, 
mortgage or similar debt obligation which encumbers the Property at Purchaser’s sole 
cost and expense.    Seller shall have the right to enforce its Right of Reentry in this 
Agreement by instituting a legal action for specific performance and/or to quiet title in 
Seller, and Seller shall be entitled to recover from Purchaser (or its permitted successor, 
assigns, or transferees) actual reasonable attorney’s fees and court costs (including 
expert fees) incurred in connection with such action. 

(d) Termination of Right of Reentry. Seller’s Right of Reentry shall
terminate and be no further force or effect the in the event that (i) Purchaser (or its 
permitted successor, assigns, or transferees) substantially completes the redevelopment 
of the Property as provided herein; or (ii) Seller fails to serve a Reentry Notice within one 
hundred twenty (120) days after the Reentry Date.  In the event Seller’s Right of Reentry 
terminates as provided in the immediately preceding sentence, Seller agrees to execute 
and deliver any documents reasonably requested by Purchaser to evidence the 
termination of Seller’s Right of Reentry.  

(e) Purchaser Acknowledgement. Purchaser acknowledges and agrees
that the Right of Reentry granted by this Section of the Agreement is a reasonable 
restriction on alienation of the Property, which is given as security for performance of post-
closing obligations required by this Agreement, is material consideration for the 
Agreement, and that the obligations in Section 16 of the Agreement shall survive Closing 
and shall not merge into the deed or other instruments delivered at Closing.    

17. Right of First Refusal.  Purchaser covenants and agrees to acquire the
Property subject to Seller’s right of first refusal, as provided in this Section.  Purchaser 
further covenants and agrees that Purchaser shall not sell, transfer, convey, or dispose, 
or attempt to sell, transfer, convey, or dispose, of the Property in violation of Seller’s right 
of first refusal, and that any sale, transfer, conveyance, or other disposal of property which 
violates Seller’s right of first refusal shall be void.  The Quitclaim Deed to be delivered by 
Seller pursuant to the terms of this Agreement shall provide notice of Seller’s right of first 
refusal, in substantially the form annexed hereto as Exhibit B.  Purchaser covenants and 
agreements provided in this Section shall survive Closing.  The terms of Seller’s right of 
first refusal are as follows: 

(a) Right of First Refusal.  Seller shall have a right of first refusal subject
to the same conditions provided in this Agreement.   Any sale, conveyance, transfer, or 
other disposition made in violation of Seller’s right of first refusal shall be void and 
unenforceable. 

(b) Exercise of Right of First Refusal.

(i) Purchaser may accept an offer for the sale, conveyance,
transfer, or other disposition of the Property only if the offer is made subject to the Seller’s 

96



 

   
PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT Page 11 of 16 
 

right of first refusal herein. Immediately upon acceptance of an offer for the sale, transfer, 
conveyance, or other disposition from a third party (the “Purchase Offer”), Purchaser shall 
present a copy of the Purchase Offer and acceptance to Seller by written notice, by 
certified mail or overnight delivery, to the address set forth above, or at such other address 
designated by Seller in writing. Seller will then have sixty (60) days from receipt of the 
Purchase Offer (the “ROFR Period”) to either agree to purchase the Property on the same 
terms and conditions set forth in the Purchase Offer, or decline to exercise its right of first 
refusal to Purchaser at the address set forth above no later than sixty (60) days after 
being presented with a copy of the Purchase Offer.  If Seller agrees to accept the 
Purchase Offer within the ROFR Period, the property shall be conveyed to the Seller in 
accordance with the terms of the Purchase Offer. 

(ii) If after execution of the Purchase Offer, the Purchaser and 
third-party amend the Purchase Offer, the Purchaser shall present a copy of the Purchase 
Offer as amended (“Amended Purchase Offer”) to Seller in accordance with Section 
17(b)(i) above, and Seller will then have ten (10) days from receipt of the Amended 
Purchase Offer (“Amendment Period”) to either agree to purchase the Property on the 
same terms and conditions set forth in the Amended Purchase Offer, or decline to 
exercise its right of first refusal no later than ten (10) days after being presented with a 
copy of the Amended Purchase Offer.  If Seller agrees to accept the Amended Purchase 
Offer, within the Amendment Period, the Property shall be conveyed to the Seller in 
accordance with the terms of the Amended Purchase Offer. 

(c) Sale or Disposal by Grantees.  If Seller does not timely exercise its 
right of first refusal or declines to exercise its right of first refusal, Purchaser may then sell 
or otherwise dispose of the Property to the third party on the same terms and conditions 
set forth in the Purchase Offer.   

If the sale or other disposition is completed on the same terms and 
conditions set forth in the Purchase Offer or Amended Purchase Offer, if applicable, then 
any interest of the Seller in and to the Property shall cease and be of no further force and 
effect. If the sale or other disposition is not completed on the terms and conditions in the 
Purchase Offer or Amended Purchase Offer, if applicable, then Seller will continue to 
have its exclusive right of first refusal under the procedures outlined above, before 
Purchaser may convey or transfer its interest in the property to a third party. 
 

(d) Waiver.  If Seller does not timely exercise its right of first refusal, or if 
Seller declines to exercise its rights in response to a particular Purchase Offer or Amended 
Purchase Offer, if applicable, and provides Purchaser with written notice of its decision to 
decline, then Seller’s City Manager shall, upon written request from Purchaser, and within 
ten (10) days of receiving the written request, deliver to Purchaser a document, in 
recordable form, attesting to Seller’s waiver and relinquishment of its right of first refusal 
and right to purchase regarding the specific Purchase Offer or Amended Purchase Offer, 
if applicable, (the “Waiver Document”).  The Waiver Document shall identify the date the 
Purchase Offer or Amended Purchase Offer, if applicable, was made, and shall be held 
by Purchaser in escrow, and not recorded, until after the closing on the Purchase Offer 
or Amended Purchase Offer, if applicable. If the sale or other disposition is not completed 

97



 

   
PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT Page 12 of 16 
 

on the same terms and conditions set forth in the Purchase Offer or Amended Purchase 
Offer, if applicable, then Purchaser shall return the Waiver Document to the Seller. 
Purchaser agrees to pay all costs and expenses, including reasonable attorney’s fees, 
incurred by Seller in preparing and recording the Waiver Document.  Seller’s 
relinquishment or forfeiture of its right to first refusal and right of purchase regarding one 
Purchase Offer or Amended Purchase Offer, if applicable, in no way waives or terminates 
its right to first refusal and right of first purchase regarding any subsequent Purchase 
Offer. 

18. General Provisions. 

(a) Each individual executing this Agreement hereby represents and 
warrants that he or she has the capacity set forth on the signature pages hereof with full 
power and authority to bind the party on whose behalf he or she is executing this 
Agreement to the terms hereof. 

(b) Time is of the essence in the performance of and compliance with 
each of the provisions and conditions of this Agreement.  In the computation of any period 
of time provided for in this Agreement or by law, the day of the act or event from which 
such period of time runs shall be excluded, and the last day of such period shall be 
included, unless it is a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday, in which case the period shall 
be deemed to run until the end of the next business day.  

(c) Seller represents and warrants to Purchaser, and Purchaser 
represents and warrants to Seller, that there is no broker, finder, or other intermediary of 
any kind with whom such party has dealt in connection with the transaction contemplated 
hereby, and each party agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the other from 
any claim made by any broker or agent alleging entitlement to any fee or commission as 
a result of having dealt with the indemnifying party. 

(d) This Agreement, including all exhibits attached hereto, constitutes 
the entire agreement and understanding of the parties with respect to the subject matter 
hereof, and there are no other prior or contemporaneous written or oral agreements, 
undertakings, promises, warranties, or covenants with respect thereto not contained 
herein. 

(e) This Agreement may be amended or modified only by a written 
instrument executed by all of the parties hereto. 

(f) No waiver of any condition or provision of this Agreement by any 
party shall be valid unless in writing signed by such party.  No such waiver shall be 
deemed or construed as a waiver of any other or similar provision or of any future event, 
act, or default. 

(g) If any provision of this Agreement is deemed unenforceable in whole 
or part, such provision shall be limited to the extent necessary to render the same valid 
or shall be deemed excised from this Agreement and replaced by a valid provision as 

98



 

   
PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT Page 13 of 16 
 

close in meaning and intent as the excised provision, as circumstances require, and this 
Agreement shall be construed as if said provision had been incorporated herein as so 
limited or as so replaced, as the case may be. 

(h) Headings of articles and sections herein are for convenience of 
reference only and shall not be construed as part of this Agreement. 

(i) This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit 
of the parties hereto and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, successors, 
and permitted assigns. 

(j) This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance 
with the laws of the State of Alaska. 

(k) This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of 
which shall be deemed an original but all of which, taken together, shall constitute a single 
instrument. 

(l) In no event shall this Agreement be construed more strongly against 
any one person solely because such person or its representative acted as draftsman 
hereof, it being acknowledged by the parties hereto that both have been represented by 
competent legal counsel, that this Agreement has been subject to substantial negotiation, 
and that all parties have contributed substantially to the preparation of this Agreement. 

(m) Any notice, request, demand, instruction or other document to be 
given or served hereunder or under any document or instrument executed pursuant 
hereto shall be in writing and shall be sent by United States registered or certified mail, 
return receipt requested, postage prepaid and addressed as follows: 

Seller:   City of Cordova 
   Attn:  City Manager 
   P. O. Box 1210 
   Cordova, Alaska  99574 

   With copy to 
   Michael Schwarz, Esq. 
   Birch Horton Bittner & Cherot, PC 

510 L. Street, Suite 700 
Anchorage, Alaska 99501 

99



 

   
PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT Page 14 of 16 
 

Purchaser:  Paul Kelly or Linda Kelly 
PO Box 265 
Cordova, AK 99574 
 

Escrow Agent:  
Alyeska Title Guaranty Agency, Inc. 
3801 Centerpoint Drive, Suite 102 
Anchorage, AK 99503 

 
Title Company:  

Alyeska Title Guaranty Agency, Inc. 
3801 Centerpoint Drive, Suite 102 
Anchorage, AK 99503 
 

Any party may change its address for notice by written notice given to the other in the 
manner provided in this Section.  Any such communication, notice or demand shall be 
deemed to have been duly given or served on the date three (3) days after being placed 
in the U.S. Mail. 

(n) The parties agree to execute such instructions to Escrow Agent and 
Title Company and such other instruments and to do such further acts as may be 
reasonably necessary to carry out the provisions of this Agreement on terms mutually 
acceptable to Purchaser and Seller.   

(o) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, this 
Agreement shall not be deemed or construed to make the parties hereto partners or joint 
ventures, or to render either party liable for any of the debts or obligations of the other, it 
being the intention of the parties to merely create the relationship of Seller and Purchaser 
with respect to the Property to be conveyed as contemplated hereby. 

  

100



 

   
PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT Page 15 of 16 
 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be 
executed by their duly authorized representatives as of the date first above written.   

SELLER: CITY OF CORDOVA 
 
 
 
 By: ________________________________________ 
  Samantha Greenwood, City Manager 
 
 
 
STATE OF ALASKA ) 
     ) ss: 
THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT ) 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of 
__________, 2024, by Samantha Greenwood, City Manager of the CITY OF CORDOVA, 
an Alaska municipal corporation, on behalf of the City. 

 
              
      Notary Public in and for Alaska 

     My commission expires:     
 
 
  

101



 

   
PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT Page 16 of 16 
 

PURCHASER:  
 
 By: ________________________________________ 
  Paul Kelly 
 
 
 By: ________________________________________ 
  Linda Kelly 
 
 
STATE OF ALASKA ) 
     ) ss: 
THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT ) 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of 
_______________________2024, by Paul Kelly. 

 
              
      Notary Public in and for Alaska 

     My commission expires:     
 
 
 
STATE OF ALASKA ) 
     ) ss: 
THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT ) 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of 
______________________2024, by Linda Kelly. 

 
              
      Notary Public in and for Alaska 

     My commission expires:     
 
  

102



 

 

EXHIBIT A 
Description of the Property 

 
Tax Assessor’s Parcel No.: 02-060-128 
 
Legal Description (Subject to confirmation by Title Report): 
 
Lot 4A, North Fill Development Park Addition #2, filed under the official plat thereof, Plat 
# 2001-10, Records of the Cordova Recording District, Third Judicial District, State of 
Alaska 
 
Plat Image: 
 
 
 

  

103



 

 

 
EXHIBIT B 

 
Quitclaim Deed with Right of Reentry and  

Right of First Refusal 
 

QUITCLAIM DEED 
 
 
 
 
 
CORDOVA RECORDING DISTRICT 
 
Recording requested by and 
after recording, return to: 
 
Michael Schwarz 
Birch Horton Bittner & Cherot 
510 L Street, Suite 700 
Anchorage, AK  99501 

 
The CITY OF CORDOVA, an Alaska municipal corporation, whose address is 

P. O. Box 1210, Cordova, Alaska 99574 ("Grantor"), for good and valuable consideration 
in hand paid, the adequacy and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, conveys 
and quitclaims to Paul Kelly and Linda Kelly (collectively, “Grantee”), whose address is 
P.O. Box 265, all interest which Grantor has, if any, in the following described real 
property (the “Property”): 

 
[Insert from title report] 

 
Subject to reservations, exceptions, easements, covenants, conditions, and 

restrictions of record, if any. 
 
This grant is further made subject to the following:  
 
1. Right of Reentry 

(a) Site Development Plan; Reentry. In connection with its proposal to 
acquire the Property, Grantee proposed and has agreed to limit use of the Premises solely 
to constructing and maintaining the project detailed in the site development plan (the “Site 
Development Plan”), which is attached hereto and incorporated and attached to a certain 
purchase and sale agreement between Grantor and Grantee, dated November __, 2024 
(the “Purchase Agreement”).  Grantee agrees that it must substantially complete 
construction of the project set forth in the Site Development Plan by a date that is five (5) 
years after the Effective Date of this Agreement. As used in this Deed, the term 

104



 

 

“substantially complete” shall mean the stage of construction when the building(s), whose 
footprint is outlined in the Site Development Plan, including its structure, façade, windows, 
roof, heating, and lighting, are sufficiently complete so that Grantee can occupy and use 
the building and install or cause the installation of all equipment required for the 
contemplated use thereof, AND Grantee has provided to the City of Cordova certificates 
of inspection from certified inspectors showing that the following inspections have been 
performed and that construction meets the codes adopted by the City in Cordova 
Municipal Code Title 16. The following inspections are the minimum required: (1) 
Foundation Inspection; (2) Framing Inspection; (3) HVAC / Mechanical Inspection; (4) 
Electrical Inspection; (5) Plumbing Inspection; (4) Fire / Life Safety Inspection; and (5) 
Final / Certificate of Occupancy Inspection. Certificates of inspections and the listed of 
required corrections in the case of a failed inspection, shall be provided to City within five 
(5) days of receiving each inspection certificate or correction list. Grantor shall have the 
right, at its sole option and discretion, to reenter and regain ownership, title and 
possession of the Property (the “Right of Reentry”), without any obligation to pay therefore 
or for any improvements made thereto, in the event that the Grantee fails to substantially 
complete the construction of the project set forth in the Site Development Plan by a date 
that is five (5) years after the Effective Date (the “Reentry Date”), and provided further 
that Grantor complies with the requirements applicable to it as set forth in Section 1(b). 

(b) Exercise of Right of Reentry. To exercise its Right of Reentry, 
Grantor shall deliver to Grantee (or its permitted successor, assigns, or transferees) a 
written notice providing Grantee thirty (30) additional days (the “Reentry Notice Period”) 
to substantially complete construction of the project (the “Reentry Notice”), which notice 
shall be delivered to Grantee no later than one hundred twenty (120) days after the 
Reentry Date.  If Grantee fails to comply with Grantor’ Reentry Notice and substantially 
complete construction of the project within the Reentry Notice Period, then title to the 
Property shall revert to the Grantor and Grantee agrees to execute and deliver to Grantor, 
within ten (10) days after the expiration of the Reentry Notice Period, a quitclaim deed 
and any other documents reasonably requested by Grantor to convey record title to the 
Property to Grantor.  Grantee agrees to take all reasonable steps to ensure Grantor 
acquires marketable title to the Property, including, without limitation, satisfying any lien, 
mortgage or similar debt obligation which encumbers the Property, at Grantee’s sole cost 
and expense.    Grantor shall have the right to enforce its Right of Reentry in this 
Agreement by instituting a legal action for specific performance and/or to quiet title, and 
Grantor shall be entitled to recover from Grantee (or its permitted successor, assigns, or 
transferees) actual reasonable attorney’s fees and court costs (including expert fees) 
incurred in connection with such action. 

(c) Termination of Right of Reentry. Grantor’s Right of Reentry shall 
terminate and be of no further force or effect in the event that (i) Grantee (or its permitted 
successor, assigns, or transferees) substantially completes the redevelopment of the 
Property as provided herein; or (ii) Grantor fails to serve a Reentry Notice within one 
hundred twenty (120) days after the Reentry Date.  In the event Grantor’s Right of Reentry 
terminates as provided in the immediately preceding sentence, Grantor agrees to execute 
and deliver any documents reasonably requested by Grantee to evidence the termination 
of Grantor’s Right of Reentry.  

105



 

 

(d) Grantee Acknowledgement. By signing below, Grantee 
acknowledges and agrees that the Right of Reentry granted by Section 1 of this Deed is 
a reasonable restriction on alienation of the Property, which is given as security for 
performance of post-closing obligations of Grantee under the Purchase Agreement.    

2. Right of First Refusal. Grantor shall have a right of first refusal and right to 
purchase the Property, subject to the same conditions provided herein.   Any sale, 
conveyance, transfer, or other disposition made in violation of Grantor’s right of first 
refusal shall be void and unenforceable. 

a.  Exercise of Right of First Refusal.  
 

i. Grantee may accept an offer for the sale, conveyance, 
transfer, or other disposition of the Property only if the offer is made subject to the 
Grantor’s right of first refusal herein. Immediately upon acceptance of an offer for the sale, 
transfer, conveyance, or other disposition from a third party (the “Purchase Offer”), 
Grantee shall present a copy of the Purchase Offer and acceptance to Grantor by written 
notice, by certified mail or overnight delivery, to the address set forth above, or at such 
other address designated by Grantor in writing. Grantor will then have sixty (60) days from 
receipt of the Purchase Offer (the “ROFR Period”) to either agree to purchase the 
Property on the same terms and conditions set forth in the Purchase Offer, or decline to 
exercise its right of first refusal to Grantee at the address set forth above no later than 
sixty (60) days after being presented with a copy of the Purchase Offer.  If Grantor agrees 
to accept the Purchase Offer within the ROFR Period, the Property shall be conveyed to 
the Grantor in accordance with the terms of the Purchase Offer. 

ii. If after execution of the Purchase Offer, the Grantee and third-
party amend the Purchase Offer, the Grantee shall present a copy of the Purchase Offer 
as amended (“Amended Purchase Offer”) to Grantor in accordance with Section 1(b)(i) 
above, and Grantor will then have ten (10) days from receipt of the Amended Purchase 
Offer (“Amendment Period”) to either agree to purchase the Property on the same terms 
and conditions set forth in the Amended Purchase Offer, or decline to exercise its right of 
first refusal no later than ten (10) days after being presented with a copy of the Amended 
Purchase Offer.  If Grantor agrees to accept the Amended Purchase Offer, within the 
Amendment Period, the Property shall be conveyed to the Grantor in accordance with the 
terms of the Amended Purchase Offer. 

c.  Sale or Disposal by Grantees. If Grantor does not timely exercise 
its right of first refusal or declines to exercise its right of first refusal, Grantee may then 
sell or otherwise dispose of the Property to the third party on the same terms and 
conditions set forth in the Purchase Offer. If the sale or other disposition is completed on 
the same terms and conditions set forth in the Purchase Offer or Amended Purchase 
Offer, if applicable, then any interest of the Grantor in and to the Property shall cease and 
be of no further force and effect. If the sale or other disposition is not completed on the 
terms and conditions in the Purchase Offer, or Amended Purchase Offer, if applicable, 
then Grantor will continue to have its exclusive right of first refusal under the procedures 

106



 

 

outlined above, before Grantee may convey or transfer its interest in the Property to a 
third party. 
 

d.  Waiver. If Grantor does not timely exercise its right of first refusal, or 
if Grantor declines to exercise its rights in response to a particular Purchase Offer or 
Amended Purchase Offer, if applicable, and provides Grantee with written notice of its 
decision to decline, then Grantor’s City Manager shall, upon written request from Grantee, 
and within ten (10) days of receiving the written request, deliver to Grantee a document, 
in recordable form, attesting to Grantor’s waiver and relinquishment of its right of first refusal 
regarding the specific Purchase Offer or Amended Purchase Offer, if applicable, (the 
“Waiver Document”).  The Waiver Document shall identify the date the Purchase Offer or 
Amended Purchase Offer, if applicable, was made, and shall be held by Grantee in 
escrow, and not recorded, until after the closing on the Purchase Offer or Amended 
Purchase Offer, if applicable. If the sale or other disposition is not completed on the 
same terms and conditions set forth in the Purchase Offer or Amended Purchase Offer, 
if applicable, then Grantee shall return the Waiver Document to the Grantor. Grantee 
agrees to pay all costs and expenses, including reasonable attorney’s fees, incurred by 
Grantor in preparing and recording the Waiver Document.  Grantor’s relinquishment or 
forfeiture of its right of first refusal regarding one Purchase Offer or Amended Purchase 
Offer, if applicable, in no way waives or terminates its right to first refusal regarding any 
subsequent Purchase Offer. 

  

107



 

 

 
DATED this __ day of _____________, 2024. 

GRANTOR:  CITY OF CORDOVA 
 
 

  
Samantha Greenwood, City Manager 

 
STATE OF ALASKA  ) 
  ) ss: 
THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT ) 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this __ day of 
__________, 2024, by Samantha Greenwood, City Manager of the City of Cordova, an 
Alaska municipal corporation, on behalf of the City. 

              
      Notary Public in and for Alaska 
      My commission expires:  
 
GRANTEE:    
 
 

  
Paul Kelly 
 

              
      Linda Kelly 
 
 
STATE OF ALASKA  ) 
  ) ss: 
THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT ) 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ______ day of 
______________, 2024, by Paul Kelly and Linda Kelly, known to me to be the individuals 
who executed the instrument for the uses and purposes set forth therein. 

              
      Notary Public in and for Alaska 
      My commission expires:     
 
 
 
  

108



 

 

EXHIBIT C 
 

Site Development Plan 
 

 

109



 

 

 
 

 

110



 

 

 

111



  
 
 

AGENDA ITEM #17 
City Council Regular Meeting Date: 11/20/24 
CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION FORM 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 
   

FROM: Samantha Greenwood 
 

DATE: 11/14/24 
 

ITEM: Transfer of Funds from Permanent Fund to pay for FY25 Grant matches for 
Whitshed Pedestrian path and Second Street Upgrades 

    

NEXT STEP:  Vote on Ordinance 1225 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
  
     X     ORDINANCE    _____ RESOLUTION 
  _____ MOTION    _____ INFORMATION 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
                                                                                                       
I. REQUEST OR ISSUE:  Staff suggests the following motion: “I move to adopt Ordinance 1225” 
 
II. BACKGROUND:  In April of 2020 the City of Cordova was awarded an $8.2 million ADOT 
Community Transportation grant for Second Street upgrades. This project extends from the corner of 
Davis Avenue and Second Street to the intersection of the Copper River Highway. This project will  
provide ADA curb and gutter sidewalks, new storm drain systems, pavement,  new lighting, improved 
parking, and removal of roof drains and sump pumps from the sewer system. Constuction is scheduled 
for summer of 2026. 
 
The Whitshed Pedestrian path project has been  an ongoing project for many years. It is also an ADOT 
Community Transportation Grant. This year will be the final match for the project that the City has 
committeed to and contruction is scheduled for summer 2027 or 2028. This project will provide a 
pedestrian path on the ocean side of Whitshed Road from the corner of the Copper River Highway to 
the Odiak campground and the Field of Dreams. The project will also address drainage issues and 
improve the existing driving lanes on Whitshed Road.  
 
The work, improvements and matches were approved by council prior to the grant applications being 
submitted.  Both projects will improve safety for pedestrians and drivers and will improve the quality of 
life for citizens. The staff and Council have been in budget discussions for the past 2 months. The grants 
allow the city to make large infrastructure improvements with a match, the State does design, permitting, 
bidding and construction. Paying the matches from the permanent fund alleviated strain on the FY25 
operating budget and is an investment into the city’s future.  
 
III. SUMMARY AND ALTERNATIVES:  The transfer of funds from the permanent fund was discussed 
during the FY25 budget meetings. If Council chooses not to transfer the funds from the permanent fund, 
the FY25 General Fund budget will need to find room for $289,898 in additional expenses to cover these 
required grant matches.  

112



Ordinance 1225 
Page 1 of 1 

CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA 
ORDINANCE 1225 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA, 
AUTHORIZING THE TRANSFER OF $289,898 FROM THE PERMANENT FUND 
GRANT PROJECT FUND, 104-901-57340, TO THE GRANT ADMINISTRATION – 
TRANSFER FROM PERMANENT FUND, 401-390-49998, TO PAY THE SECOND 

STREET UPGRADE PROJECT AND WHITSHED PEDESTRIAN PATH PROJECT 
GRANT MATCHES FOR FY25 

WHEREAS, the Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, will adopt the City Budget 
and appropriate funds for FY25 for the period of January 1, 2025, to December 31, 2025, before 
the end of 2024; and 

WHEREAS, additional interfund transfers pursuant to this Ordinance are intended to 
provide a source of money to pay for additional budget appropriations as follows; and 

Fund # Fund Title Amount Out Amount In 

104-901-57340 PF Grant Project Fund $289,898 

401-390-49998 Grant Admin-Transfer from PF $289,898 

 WHEREAS, the City of Cordova received two ADOT Community STIP grants $8.155 
million for Second Street Upgrades and 9 million for Whitshed Road pedestrian path; and 

 WHEREAS, both grants require City matches for FY25 Whitshed Road Pedestrian 
Path final match is $214,748 and Second Street Upgrade match is $75,150. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED that the Council of the City of Cordova, 
Alaska, hereby authorizes the transfer of $289,898 from the Permanent Fund to Grant 
Administration Fund for Second Street Upgrade and Whitshed Pedestrian Path Grants matches. 

This ordinance shall be enacted in accordance with Section 2.13 of the Charter of the 
City of Cordova, Alaska and published within ten (10) days after its passage. 

1st reading and Public Hearing: November 20, 2024 
2nd reading and Public Hearing: ________________ 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS ____ DAY OF _____________ 2024. 

____________________________________ 
David Allison, Mayor 

ATTEST:  
____________________________________ 
Susan Bourgeois, City Clerk 

113



 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 19 
City Council Meeting Date: 11/20/24 

CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION FORM 
                                                                                                                                                                                  
      
FROM: Samantha Greenwood, City Manager  
 
DATE: 11/13/24 
 
ITEM: City Comments on State Action Impacting City Leases: Comments to Division of 

Mining, Land, and Water regarding private access easement request across City’s 
lease of the Ski Hill   

                                                                                                                                                                                  
  
  ____ ORDINANCE    ____ RESOLUTION 
           MOTION       X    INFORMATION 
                                                                                                                                                                                  
                                                                                                     
I. REQUEST OR ISSUE:  The State of Alaska, Division of Mining, Land, and Water, requested comments 
from the City on an application for a 300-foot private easement over State property leased to the City (“Ski 
Hill parking lot”) filed by Paul and Linda Kelly. The City issued comments objecting to the easement due 
to its impact on the City’s leasehold interest in the property and the impact on public use and future 
development of the property. The Mayor emailed the State disagreeing with the City’s comments, 
expressing his support for the application, and his belief that the City’s objections did not promote the City’s 
development policy set by Council. The State has requested clarification regarding which comments 
constitute the official position of the City.  It is my understanding that the official comments of the City are 
those submitted by the Public Works Director/Acting Planner but before communicating this to the State, I 
want to discuss this matter with City Council and the Mayor.  
 
II. RECOMMENDED ACTION: Discussion regarding my duties as City Manager and the role of the 
Administration, City Council, and the Mayor in the submission of comments on State actions that impact 
City leasehold interests.  
 
III. BACKGROUND INFORMATION: On August 29, 2024, the State received an application from 
Paul and Linda Kelly requesting the creation of an easement for the construction, survey, operation, and 
maintenance of a driveway to their property. The application sought a private easement over State-
managed uplands in Section 22, Township 15 South, Range 3 West, Copper River Meridian, Alaska, 
which includes the Ski Hill Parking lot. The City leases the Mt. Eyak Recreation Site, which includes 
the Ski Hill Parking lot from the State. The City received a request for comments regarding the easement 
from the State and placed that request in correspondence at the 9/18/24 City Council meeting. No 
comments by Council or the Mayor were made at that meeting. After discussions with me, the Sheridan 

114



Alpine Ski Club, and the applicant, and after reviewing the implications of the requested easement on the 
City’s lease, the Public Works Director/Acting Planner drafted comments for my approval, which were 
submitted on 9/25/24. I read, edited, and agree with the concerns that were addressed in the City comments. 
The City comments clarify land ownership and show that the access easement needed is considerably larger 
than what the application shows. The City comments address parking, access, and snow removal concerns 
of the City and the City contractor, Sheridan Alpine. I believe these comments are in the best interest of the 
City and in the best interest of long-term development of the area. The State provided Mr. Kelly the City’s 
comments on 10/29/24.  On 11/1/24 the Mayor, Planner, and I received an email from the State notifying 
us that the State had received comments from both the Public Works Director/Acting Planner and the Mayor 
and asking for clarification of the official stance of the City on the easement request.      
 
On 11/4/24, I reached out to the Mayor and asked if he would provide me his comments which are attached. 
After reviewing the comments, I reached out to City Attorney Holly Wells concerned that I had overstepped 
my role. My understanding of the City Manager role was that I was responsible for ensuring that the City 
reviewed requests for comments on State actions impacting City leases and submitted comments if I 
determined that doing so was needed to protect the City’s interests. The City Attorney confirmed my 
understanding. I met with the Mayor on 11/5/24, to discuss his concerns. I have included the City’s 
correspondence with the Mayor and the State in this packet.  In addition, the City Attorney will be providing 
City Council with a more detailed memo regarding the concerns she raised during our meeting.  
 
 

115



Items Included: 

1) August 29, 2024, Public Notice from the State DNR, Division of Mining, Land & Water, announcing 

30-day public comment period for ADL 234275 access easement application, appeared as 

correspondence in 9/18/24 Council Regular Meeting packet 

2) September 19, 2024, City of Cordova submitted comments for ADL 234275 Access Easement 

Request 

3) October 31, 2024, email from David Allison to Savannah Lilyhorn with comments on ADL 234275 

4) November 1, 2024, email from Savannah Lilyhorn of DNR, asking for clarification of City of 

Cordova’s official stance 

 

116



PUBLIC NOTICE 
ADL 234275 

Paul and Linda Kelly  
Private Non-Exclusive Access Easement 

August 29, 2024 

Subject to AS 38.05.850, the Southcentral Regional Land Office (SCRO) received an application for 
the following: 

APPLICANT: Paul and Linda Kelly  

PROJECT NAME: ADL 234275 

GEOGRAPHIC LOCATION: Cordova, Alaska 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Section 22 of Township 15 South, Range 3 West, Copper River Meridian, 
Alaska 

REQUESTED ACTIVITY: The applicant has requested issuance of a private non-exclusive 
easement to facilitate access to their property and future placement of utilities. The applicant has 
requested an indefinite term easement 300 feet in length and 60 feet in width, occupying 
approximately 0.041 acres. The easement, if approved, may differ from that described herein. 

REQUESTED TERM: Indefinite 

DEADLINE FOR COMMENTS: September 30, 2024 

The public is invited to comment on this activity. The purpose of this notice is to gather input before 
a decision is made on this activity. To ensure consideration, written comments must be received by 
the Division of Mining, Land and Water at Southcentral Regional Land Office,  
 550 West 7th Avenue, Suite 900C, Anchorage, AK 99501, on or before the date noted above. 
Questions concerning this activity or requests to view the full application packet should be directed 
to Savannah Lilyhorn, Telephone: (907) 269-8562; Fax: (907) 269-8913 or e-mail: 
Savannah.lilyhorn@Alaska.gov. 

After review and adjudication, we may issue an authorization with stipulations for the activity.  The 
activity may be modified during the review and adjudication process. 

DNR-DMLW complies with Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Individuals with 
disabilities who may need auxiliary aids, services or special modifications to comment should contact 
Alaska Relay at 711 or 800-770-8973 for TTY services. DMLW reserves the right to waive technical 
defects in this notice. 

117



STATE OF ALASKA 
DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES 

Division of Mining, Land and Water 

APPLICATION FOR EASEMENT 

AS 38.05.850 

AOL# _______ _ 
(to be filled in by State) 

Applications that are submitted with unfilled sections or inadequate explanation and/or without application fees, a 
location figure and/or a completed Division of Mining, Land and Water (DMLW) Environmental Risk Questionnaire will 
be deemed incomplete. Incomplete applications will be returned without review. See DMLW's current fee regulations 
(11 AAC 05) and associated Director's Fee Order for applicable non-refundable fee amounts. The filing of an application 
does not guarantee processing or approval of the requested authorization. 

Applicant, (7 a,J a,J lz;4 &f4 
Doing Business As: --1�,,_)_,MM=-__ 'Yl.-_<._0_f _________ _

Agent: (if app ic;ib "'· J,tach 1.:-:corcJ of ,iutl o,•1.,111, 11 ·0 ILJ.>rCSfnl) ____ _

Mailing Address: ---=--'"'"--' ........ "-----------

City/State/Zip:_.,.__""" 

Primary Phone: 

General Location: �.1.1.,.,�L..L..;�-L..!o!..--.J.#-L.-..t..,..;.;.i...<:..i;...,;
__..

u.::::..1.-_Municlpality: f_o ,-c.Pt> tla fr[L.

Section(s): ·51k31. - 1 Townshipt) Range: ___ Meridian: $'\(c l-�tl\ f<caJ
-\e

Section(s): Township: ___ Range: ___ Meridian: __________ _ 

Attach a location figure, plan drawing or survey that shows the detailed location of the requested easement in relation 
to adjoining property boundaries and reference points. All features must be labeled. 

Dimensions requested 
-; {) r 1. Length: ____ ,._?....._0 __________ Width: 

2. Area: / $ 00 S/' ff Are units in IS square feet or D acres?

Term requested and rationale: dtn fa 00- - J o Cl cc e- S £ a... /fli l'J-t-12... .S: ;-;;.,f'
l

Are you applying for a D public or a � private easement? Rationale:

c-/n;,;q.v'(Jt.M Z:()c acce.5"£ i:r, our ;Pc; ✓f.L't.., Pr-0..,:).(1.::t\.1 0,1.cl a_i /4 b i;.r7 I ■ � I 
Development plan summary/specific purpose of easement: �-----

This information will be used to �rmine ,he scope of use of the easement. 

234275

118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



From: David Allison
To: Sam Greenwood
Subject: Fw: ADL 234275 - Cordova comment
Date: Monday, November 4, 2024 2:45:41 PM
Attachments: image001.png

City of Cordova Public Comment to State of Alaska RE ADL 234275.pdf

Fyi

David Allison, Mayor
City of Cordova Alaska
P.O. Box 1210 or 601 1st Street
Cordova, AK. 99574
(907) 424-6200 City
(907) 831-6791 Cell
mayor@cityofcordova.net

From: David Allison <mayor@cityofcordova.net>
Sent: Thursday, October 31, 2024 10:21 AM
To: savannah.lilyhorn@alaska.gov <savannah.lilyhorn@alaska.gov>
Cc: Paul Kelly <paulkellyak@gmail.com>
Subject: ADL 234275 - Cordova comment

Greetings from the Mayor of Cordova…

Regarding City comments made by Staff of the city…

Let me first tell you that these comments were made without any discussion with:
Planning Commission 
City Council
Ski Club directors (they manage ski hill for the City)
landowner/applicant

I will be discussing these comments with the City Manager and Public Works Director to see
what their reasoning was for leaving out all public input into their comments.  Seems to me
that most, if not all, of the comments in the attached City comments could/should have been
addressed with the affected parties. (All the groups listed above at a minimum)

I do not see any issues that can’t be worked out to allow this easement.  Parking will be
improved for the ski club, there is already parking up and down the sides of ski hill road
during busy times…having more parking on top at end of existing road/parking lot would
Help this situation.  The attached comments indicate parking spots will be lost, but I believe
the applicant has a plan to Expand parking in the easnent!

The City has a policy set by Council to encourage development and work with developers and
property owners to accomplish this.  Staff making comments without discussion with
appropriate groups is not promoting that policy.

130

mailto:mayor@cityofcordova.net
mailto:citymanager@cityofcordova.net
tel:(907) 424-6200
tel:(907) 831-6791




























Thank You for taking my comments on this…if it still possible to put in formal comments,
please let me know and if there is a website to view or submit comments then a link to that
would help.

Thank you…

David Allison, Mayor
City of Cordova Alaska
P.O. Box 1210 or 601 1st Street
Cordova, AK. 99574
(907) 424-6200 City
(907) 831-6791 Cell
mayor@cityofcordova.net

====================================
---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: Lilyhorn, Savannah A (DNR) <savannah.lilyhorn@alaska.gov>
Date: Tue, Oct 29, 2024 at 1:39 PM
Subject: ADL 234275 - Cordova comment
To: Paul Kelly <paulkellyak@gmail.com>

Good morning,

As said in our call yesterday with Evan Dodd, regarding next steps for ADL 234275, attached
is the City of Cordova’s public notice comment.

We’ll talk soon,

Thank you,

Savannah Lilyhorn

Natural Resource Specialist

Department of Natural Resources

Division of Mining, Land, and Water

Easements Unit

Phone: +1 907.269.8562

131

tel:(907) 424-6200
tel:(907) 831-6791
mailto:savannah.lilyhorn@alaska.gov
mailto:paulkellyak@gmail.com
tel:+1 907.269.8562


From: Lilyhorn, Savannah A (DNR) <savannah.lilyhorn@alaska.gov> 
Sent: Friday, November 1, 2024 2:46:38 PM 
To: City Planner <planning@cityofcordova.net>; David Allison <mayor@cityofcordova.net>; Sam 
Greenwood <citymanager@cityofcordova.net> 
Cc: Dodd, Evan G (DNR) <evan.dodd@alaska.gov> 
Subject: ADL 234275 - Paul Kelly Private Easement  

Good afternoon, 

As you may know, our office (SCRO) is currently adjudicating a request for issuance of an easement from 
Paul Kelly, to facilitate access to his private parcel over DMLW managed lands. During, and immediately 
following, the public notice period I received input from both the Public Works Director/Acting City 
Planner, Kevin Johnson, and the Mayor, David Allison. To continue with our adjudication of the request, 
SCRO will need clarification as to what the official stance of the City of Cordova holds regarding this 
project.  

Thank you! 

Savannah Lilyhorn 
Natural Resource Specialist 

Department of Natural Resources 
Division of Mining, Land, and Water 
Easements Unit 
Phone: +1 907.269.8562 

132

mailto:savannah.lilyhorn@alaska.gov
mailto:planning@cityofcordova.net
mailto:mayor@cityofcordova.net
mailto:citymanager@cityofcordova.net
mailto:evan.dodd@alaska.gov


A.
initially put on or 

revisited 

1) Public Safety Resources - discussion 1/20/2021

2) Ordinance change (Title 4) to ensure Council has a role in CBA approval process 9/6/2023

3) Facility condition assessments part 2 work session (did P&R on 4-19-23) - Oct '23 9/6/2023

4) City Code re: procurement, Manager spending limit trigger in a code provision 4/19/2023

5) Discuss/create a policy for established timeframes for review of City ongoing contracts 9/6/2023

6) Explore methods to capture tourism dollars by requiring arriving RVs to use paid facilities 9/6/2023

7) Strategic planning work session (goal setting), to include Permanent Fund and other priorities 2/21/2024

8) Bonding for City streets - explore for when asphalt plants will be in town during other projects 4/3/2024

9) Charter change discussion, resolution to put on ballot - remote finance director on 11/20/24 agenda 9/18/2024

10) Code change to land disposal maps when a status change (time-frame for disposal post status chg) 9/18/2024

11) Ordinance from CM to address cashflow issue for the $3.9 or $2.9M that has been used from the GF 11/6/2024

12) Enterprise funds accounting procedures 11/6/2024

B. date referred

1) Disposal of PWSSC Bldg - referred until more of a plan for north harbor so the term of RFP would be known 1/19/2022

2) Res 12-18-36 re E-911, will be back when a plan has been made 12/19/2018

C.

1) Capital Priorities List, Resolution 01-24-01, is in each packet - if 2 council members want to revisit the resolution

they should mention that at Pending Agenda and it can be included in the next packet for action

2) Staff quarterly reports will be in the following packets:

1/15/2025 4/16/2025 7/16/2025 10/15/2025

3) Joint City Council and School Board Meetings - twice per year, May & October

before Council mtg in May 6pm @ CHS before Sch Bd mtg Oct. or Nov.

4) Clerk's evaluation - each year in Feb (before Council changeover after Mar election) - next Feb '25

5) Manager's evaluation - each year in Jan - next one Jan '25

6) In May each year City will provide public outreach regarding beginning of bear season     photo by Wendy Ranney

7) Each year in June Council will approve by Resolution, the School's budget and City's contribution

D.

item for action proposed date

1) …

2) …

3) …

tasking which staff: Manager/Clerk?

City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska

Pending Agenda

November 20, 2024 Regular Council Meeting

Future agenda items - topics put on PA with no specific date for inclusion on an agenda

Resolutions, Ordinances, other items that have been referred to staff

Upcoming Meetings, agenda items and/or events: with specific dates

Council adds items to Pending Agenda in this way:

Mayor Allison or the City Manager can either agree to such an item and that will automatically place it

on an agenda, or a second Council member can concur with the sponsoring Council member.

133



E.

1) Cordova Fisheries Committee: Council needs to determine exact makeup of the committee 

auth res 10-24-32 approved Oct 2, 2024 Council needs to determine how to fill the seats

2) Cordova Trails Committee: 1-Elizabeth Senear 2-Toni Godes

re-auth res 11-18-29 app 11/7/18 3-Dave Zastrow 4-Ryan Schuetze

auth res 11-09-65 app 12/2/09 5-Stormy Haught 6-Michelle Hahn

F.

1) Prince William Sound Regional Citizens Advisory Council

David Janka appointed March 2024 2 year term until May 2026

2) Prince William Sound Aquaculture Corporation Board of Directors

Tommy Sheridan appointed June 2024 3 year term until Oct 2027

3) Alaska Mariculture Alliance

Sean Den Adel appointed March 2024 no specific term

City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska

Pending Agenda

November 20, 2024 Regular Council Meeting

Membership of existing advisory committees of Council formed by resolution:

City of Cordova appointed reps to various non-City Boards/Councils/Committees:

134



Res. 01-24-01 CIP List 
Page 1 of 2 

CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA 
RESOLUTION 01-24-01 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA, 
DESIGNATING CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS  

WHEREAS, the Cordova City Council has identified several Capital Improvement projects that 
will benefit the citizens of Cordova, and in several cases the entirety of Prince William Sound; and 

WHEREAS, the Council of the City of Cordova has identified the following Capital Improvement 
projects as being critical to the future well-being and economy of Cordova and the surrounding area: 

Port and Harbor 
North Harbor Efficiency and Safety  

Stabilize Breakwater Ave through sheet piling to create usable uplands for industrial, commercial,  
Harbor and associated uses.  

Improve pedestrian safety by creating a sidewalk and boardwalk system to navigate between the 
north and south harbors. 

Provide additional cranes, laydown areas, and in-harbor fuel services. 
Waste Oil/Maintenance Building 
Shipyard Expansion 
Harbor Basin Expansion  

Water Upgrades  
Improve water delivery during peak water usage. 
Booster station at Murchison tank to improve water delivery during peak flow. 
Permanent siphon at Crater Lake to improve water delivery during peak flow. 
Upgrade Pipe Infrastructure. 
Upgrade pump stations and equipment. 
Feasibility Study services and Fire Protection (hydrants) to Outlying Areas 
Water distribution upgrades 

Sewer Upgrades 
Replacement/upgrade of Wastewater plant and Scada. 
Replacement/Upgrades of Lift Stations. 
Replacement of Force main in Odiak Slough. 
Upgrade Pipe Infrastructure. 

Streets Infrastructure and Equipment 
6th and 7th Streets Upgrades 
Chase Avenue Upgrades  
Replace/Upgrade pedestrian walkways (4th and Adams) (Council Street), and (2nd Street to Main)  
Wheeled Loader  

 Road Grader 
Backhoe 

Water Services and Fire Protection (hydrants) to Outlying Areas – Feasibility Study  

Public Safety  
E-911 Implementation
Acquire and integrate new hardware to fully utilize the new E-911 addressing.
Replace Failing RMS
Replace Dispatch Console
Replace Radio Structure on Ski Hill
Engineering and Preliminary Design of Public Safety Building

Prep Site 

mos
t re

ce
ntl

y a
pp

rov
ed

 

ca
pit

al 
im

pro
ve

men
ts 

list

135



Res. 01-24-01 CIP List 
Page 2 of 2 

Recreational Safety and Development 
Pool Infrastructure 

Door and Siding Replacements and CMU Joint Repairs 
Pool Cover  Replacement 
Pool Roof Replacement 
Ventilations Remodel/Replacement 
Electrical Distribution System Replacement 
ADA Compliance and Parking Area re-grade. 

Bidarki Recreation Center 
Structural Repair 
Code and Ada Compliance 
Facility Improvements 

Eyak Lake Skater’s Cabin 
Demolish and replace. 

Playground Renovations 
Replacement of swing set at Noel Pallas Children’s Memorial Playground 

Parks Restrooms/Buildings/Structures 
Ballfield/Cordova Municipal Park Restroom/Concession Stand – Code and ADA Compliance 
Fleming Spit Restroom Replacement 
Odiak Pond Boardwalk and Gazebo – Code and ADA Compliance 
Odiak Camper Park Restrooms/Facility Improvements – Code and ADA Compliance. 
Parks Maintenance Shop Facility Improvements – Code Compliance 

Ski Hill Improvements 

Land Development 
Housing  
Cold Storage 
Harbor Basin Expansion 

and; 

WHEREAS, some or all of these projects will be submitted to State or Federal legislators and/or 
agencies as Capital Improvement projects for the City of Cordova, Alaska. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, 
hereby designates and prioritizes the above listed projects as Capital Improvement projects. 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 17th DAY OF JANUARY 2024 

________________________________ 
David Allison, Mayor 

Attest: 

________________________________ 
Susan Bourgeois, CMC, City Clerk   mos

t re
ce

ntl
y a

pp
rov

ed
 

ca
pit

al 
im

pro
ve

men
ts 

list

136



CALENDAR MONTH NOVEMBER
CALENDAR YEAR 2024
1ST DAY OF WEEK SUNDAY

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday
27 28 29 30 31 1 2

3 4 5 6 7 8 9

10 11 12 13 14 15 16

17 18 19 20 21 22 23

24 25 26 27 28 29 30

1 2 Notes
Legend: 
CCAB-Community Rms A&B
HSL-High School Library
CCA-Community Rm A

CCB-Community Rm B
CCM-Mayor's Conf Rm
CCER-Education Room

LN-Library Fireplace Nook
CRG-Copper River Gallery
HCR-CCMC Conference Room

2024
November

Cncl - 1st & 3rd Wed
P&Z - 2nd Tues
SchBd, Hrb Cms - 2nd Wed
CTC - 3rd Tues

P&R - last Tues
CEC - 4th Wed
Hosp Svcs Bd - last Thurs

6:30 P&Z CCAB

6:00 P&R CCM

6:00 Harbor Cms CCAB
7:00 Sch Bd HSL

5:30 CTC Board Meeting CCER

6:00 CEC Board Mtg CCER
12:00 Hosp 
Svc Bd HCR

tbd Work Session - maybe
7:00 Council reg mtg CCAB

5:00 Work Session
7:00 Council reg mtg CCAB

Veteran's Day 
Holiday City 

Offices closed

Thanksgiving 
Holiday City 

Offices closed
11/28 & 11/29

----- early voting @ Cordova Center Atrium Oct 21 - Nov 4 M-F 8a-4:30p -----

5:30 Hosp Svc Bd
jt wksn w-Ilanka 
Health Bd CCB

6:30 P&Z CCAB

6:00 Work Session

137

https://www.google.com/imgres?imgurl=https://www.btrcs.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/08/School-1st-day-of-school-title.png&imgrefurl=https://www.btrcs.org/events/first-day-school/&docid=vDj6h3N2HmcqrM&tbnid=6EyhHSpfGLt6tM:&vet=10ahUKEwitoLS1x5_UAhVhjVQKHR5nC_AQMwh7KAUwBQ..i&w=1600&h=902&bih=890&biw=1572&q=FIRST%20DAY%20OF%20SCHOOL&ved=0ahUKEwitoLS1x5_UAhVhjVQKHR5nC_AQMwh7KAUwBQ&iact=mrc&uact=8
https://www.google.com/imgres?imgurl=http://www.rousespointny.com/iu/Swimming-clip-art-pictures-free-clipart-images-2.jpg&imgrefurl=http://www.rousespointny.com/the-village/youthcommissionhtmlhtml.html&docid=bT2hncH6DOYAvM&tbnid=H9Ralr-lVACv5M:&vet=10ahUKEwj4pfSiyoTWAhUBzmMKHZ9sBZUQMwhbKAEwAQ..i&w=570&h=700&bih=850&biw=1467&q=hs%20swimming&ved=0ahUKEwj4pfSiyoTWAhUBzmMKHZ9sBZUQMwhbKAEwAQ&iact=mrc&uact=8
https://www.google.com/imgres?imgurl=http://cdn.lsr7.org/wp-content/uploads/2014/10/halloween1.jpg&imgrefurl=https://www.hercampus.com/school/brandeis/10-festive-ways-get-halloween-spirit&docid=i4_VuK8HBof2tM&tbnid=FbPSrAGcVOGTYM:&vet=10ahUKEwijjMKR3sjWAhVBxmMKHThoCxMQMwjFASgJMAk..i&w=1429&h=1521&bih=849&biw=1589&q=picture%20of%20Halloween&ved=0ahUKEwijjMKR3sjWAhVBxmMKHThoCxMQMwjFASgJMAk&iact=mrc&uact=8


CALENDAR MONTH DECEMBER
CALENDAR YEAR 2024
1ST DAY OF WEEK SUNDAY

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday
1 2 3 4 5 6 7

8 9 10 11 12 13 14

15 16 17 18 19 20 21

22 23 24 25 26 27 28

29 30 31 1 2 3 4

5 6 Notes
Legend: 
CCAB-Community Rms A&B
HSL-High School Library
CCA-Community Rm A

CCB-Community Rm B
CCM-Mayor's Conf Rm
CCER-Education Room

LN-Library Fireplace Nook
CRG-Copper River Gallery
HCR-CCMC Conference Room

2024
December

Cncl - 1st & 3rd Wed
P&Z - 2nd Tues
SchBd, Hrb Cms - 2nd Wed
CTC - 3rd Tues

P&R - last Tues
CEC - 4th Wed
Hosp Svcs Bd - last Thurs

6:30 P&Z CCAB

6:00 P&R CCM

6:00 Harbor Cms CCAB
7:00 Sch Bd HSL

5:30 CTC Board Meeting CCER

6:00 CEC Board Mtg CCER
12:00 Hosp 
Svc Bd HCR

7:00 Council reg mtg CCAB

6:45 Council PH 
7:00 Council reg mtg CCAB

Christmas 
Holiday City 

Offices closed
12/25

Cordova Holiday 
Bazaar Dec 6-7
@ Mt. Eccles

CSD Winter Vacation Dec 23 - Jan 3

Cordova, AK Dec 10-16

138

https://www.google.com/imgres?imgurl=https://www.btrcs.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/08/School-1st-day-of-school-title.png&imgrefurl=https://www.btrcs.org/events/first-day-school/&docid=vDj6h3N2HmcqrM&tbnid=6EyhHSpfGLt6tM:&vet=10ahUKEwitoLS1x5_UAhVhjVQKHR5nC_AQMwh7KAUwBQ..i&w=1600&h=902&bih=890&biw=1572&q=FIRST%20DAY%20OF%20SCHOOL&ved=0ahUKEwitoLS1x5_UAhVhjVQKHR5nC_AQMwh7KAUwBQ&iact=mrc&uact=8
https://www.google.com/imgres?imgurl=http://www.rousespointny.com/iu/Swimming-clip-art-pictures-free-clipart-images-2.jpg&imgrefurl=http://www.rousespointny.com/the-village/youthcommissionhtmlhtml.html&docid=bT2hncH6DOYAvM&tbnid=H9Ralr-lVACv5M:&vet=10ahUKEwj4pfSiyoTWAhUBzmMKHZ9sBZUQMwhbKAEwAQ..i&w=570&h=700&bih=850&biw=1467&q=hs%20swimming&ved=0ahUKEwj4pfSiyoTWAhUBzmMKHZ9sBZUQMwhbKAEwAQ&iact=mrc&uact=8
https://www.google.com/imgres?imgurl=http://cdn.lsr7.org/wp-content/uploads/2014/10/halloween1.jpg&imgrefurl=https://www.hercampus.com/school/brandeis/10-festive-ways-get-halloween-spirit&docid=i4_VuK8HBof2tM&tbnid=FbPSrAGcVOGTYM:&vet=10ahUKEwijjMKR3sjWAhVBxmMKHThoCxMQMwjFASgJMAk..i&w=1429&h=1521&bih=849&biw=1589&q=picture%20of%20Halloween&ved=0ahUKEwijjMKR3sjWAhVBxmMKHThoCxMQMwjFASgJMAk&iact=mrc&uact=8


seat/length of term email Date Elected Term Expires
Mayor: David Allison March 1, 2022 March-25
3 years Mayor@cityofcordova.net
Council members:
Seat A: Tom Bailer March-25
3 years CouncilSeatA@cityofcordova.net
Seat B: Cathy Sherman March-26
3 years CouncilSeatB@cityofcordova.net
Seat C: Kasey Kinsman, Vice Mayor March 7, 2023 March-26
3 years CouncilSeatC@cityofcordova.net
Seat D: Wendy Ranney March 5, 2024 March-27
3 years CouncilSeatD@cityofcordova.net July 5, 2023 elected by cncl

Seat E: David Zastrow March 5, 2024 March-27
3 years CouncilSeatE@cityofcordova.net
Seat F: Kristin Smith March 1, 2022 March-25
3 years CouncilSeatF@cityofcordova.net
Seat G: Ken Jones March 1, 2022 March-25
3 years CouncilSeatG@cityofcordova.net

length of term Date Elected Term Expires
3 years Barb Jewell, president March-25

bjewell@cordovasd.org

3 years Henk Kruithof March 5, 2024 March-27
hkruithof@cordovasd.org March 2, 2021

3 years Terri Stavig March 1, 2022 March-25
tstavig@cordovasd.org

3 years Peter Hoepfner March-27
phoepfner@cordovasd.org

3 years David Glasen March 7, 2023 March-26

vacant

(updated 07-29-24)

March 1, 2022 
March 5, 2019

Mar 1, 2022, Mar 5, 
2019, Mar 1, 2016, 

Mar 5, 2013

March 7, 2023
March 3, 2020

Mar 5, 2024, Mar 2, 
2021, Mar 6, 2018, 
Mar 3, 2015, Mar 6, 
2012, Mar 3, 2009, 

Mar 7, 2006

City of Cordova, Alaska Elected Officials

Cordova School District School Board of Education - Elected

Mayor and City Council - Elected

& Appointed Members of City Boards and Commissions

seat up for re-appt in Nov '24

seat up for re-election in Mar '25

board/commission chair/vice

139

mailto:Mayor@cityofcordova.net
mailto:CouncilSeatA@cityofcordova.net
mailto:CouncilSeatB@cityofcordova.net
mailto:CouncilSeatC@cityofcordova.net
mailto:CouncilSeatD@cityofcordova.net
mailto:CouncilSeatE@cityofcordova.net
mailto:CouncilSeatF@cityofcordova.net
mailto:CouncilSeatG@cityofcordova.net
mailto:bjewell@cordovasd.org
mailto:hkruithof@cordovasd.org
mailto:tstavig@cordovasd.org
mailto:phoepfner@cordovasd.org


length of term Date Elected Term Expires
3 years Diane Ujioka March 5, 2024 March-27

CCMCBoardSeatC@cdvcmc.com December 19, 2023 elected by board

3 years Ann Linville March 1, 2022 March-25
CCMCBoardSeatA@cdvcmc.com

3 years Shelly Kocan July 25, 2024 elected by board March-25
CCMCBoardSeatB@cdvcmc.com

3 years Liz Senear March 5, 2024 March-27
CCMCBoardSeatD@cdvcmc.com March 2, 2021

3 years Kelsey Appleton Hayden, Chair March-26
CCMCBoardSeatE@cdvcmc.com

length of term Date Appointed Term Expires
3 years Mary Anne Bishop, Chair November-25

3 years Debra Adams Dec '21 November-24
3years Sherman Powell November-25

3 years Mark Donachy Dec '23 November-26
3 years Krysta Williams November-26

length of term Date Appointed Term Expires
3 years Kris Ranney Dec '22 November-25
3 years Mark Hall, Vice Chair Nov '19, Dec '22 November-25
3 years Sarah Trumblee Dec '20, Dec '23 November-26
3 years Tania Harrison, Chair Mar '22 November-24
3 years Gail Foode Dec '23 November-26
3 years Chris Bolin Sep '17, Nov '18 November-24

Dec '21
3 years Sean Den Adel Dec '23 November-26

vacant

(updated 07-29-24)

City of Cordova, Alaska Elected Officials
& Appointed Members of City Boards and Commissions

March 7, 2023
March 3, 2020

Feb '18, Dec '20, 
Dec '23

June '18, Feb '20, 
Jan '23

Library Board - Appointed

Hospital Services - Board of Directors - Elected

Planning Commission - Appointed

seat up for re-election in Mar '25

Nov '06, '10, '13, 
'16, '19, Dec '22

seat up for re-appt in Nov '24
board/commission chair

140

mailto:CCMCBoardSeatC@cdvcmc.com
mailto:CCMCBoardSeatA@cdvcmc.com
mailto:CCMCBoardSeatB@cdvcmc.com
mailto:CCMCBoardSeatD@cdvcmc.com
mailto:CCMCBoardSeatE@cdvcmc.com


length of term Date Appointed Term Expires

3 years Ryan Schuetze Dec '23 November-26
3 years Andy Craig, Chair November-25

3 years Garrett Collins Dec '23 November-26
3 years Ken Jones November-25

3 years Christa Hoover Dec '21 November-24
3 years Hein Kruithof Dec '23 November-26
3 years Tommy Sheridan Sept '22 November-24

length of term Date Appointed Term Expires
3 years Jim Fritsch May '24 November-24
3 years Henk Kruithof Nov '19, Dec '22 November-25
3 years Aaron Hansen, Chair Dec '21 November-24
3 years Kara Rodrigues Dec '23 November-26
3 years Marvin VanDenBroek November-25

3 years Jason Ellingson Mar '23 November-25
3 years Erin Cole May '24 November-26

length of term Date Appointed Term Expires
3 years Kris Ranney, PC member Mar '23 appt'd by PC November-25
3 years Heather Hall, professional member November-25

3 years Sylvia Lange, NVE member Nov '22, Nov '19 appt'd by NVE November-25
3 years Christy Mog, professional member Dec '23 November-26
3 years Ashley Bivin, historical society member Dec '23 November-24
3 years Nancy Bird, professional member Nov '17, Nov '18 November-24

Dec '21
3 years Jim Casement, public member Dec '23 November-26

vacant

(updated 07-29-24)

seat up for re-election in Mar '24

Feb '13, Nov '16, 
Nov '19, Dec '22

Historic Preservation Commission - Appointed

Harbor Commission - Appointed

seat up for re-appt in Nov '24
board/commission chair

Parks and Recreation Commission - Appointed

Feb '14, Nov '16, 
Nov '19, Dec '22

City of Cordova, Alaska Elected Officials
& Appointed Members of City Boards and Commissions

Aug '16, Feb '20, Mar 
'23

Nov '16, '19 & Dec 
'22

141


	11-13-24 Sheridan Alpine 2023-24 Season Summary Presentation
	11-20-24 Cordova High School Student Council Report
	10-02-24 Regular City Council Meeting Minutes
	vacancies for clk rpt 11-20-24
	11-20-24 correspondence-all
	correspondence primer
	11-05-24 Cordova Iceworm Swim Team letter to City Council
	11-06-24 Kocan letter regarding Cordova Iceworm Swim Team
	11-06-24 Kuntz letter regarding Cordova Iceworm Swim Team
	11-06-24 Renner letter regarding Cordova Iceworm Swim Team
	11-06-24 Reynolds email in support of Cordova Iceworm Swim Team
	11-06-24 Thorne letter regarding Iceworm swim team
	11-06-24 Westing letter regarding Cordova Iceworm Swim Team
	11-06-24 Wildrick email in support of Cordova Iceworm Swim Team
	11-07-24 Cordova Iceworm Swim Team letter to Manager cc to City Council
	11-08-24 Email from Christi Banks regarding Chamber of Commerce
	11-08-24 Email from Osa Schultz regarding Chamber of Commerce
	11-12-24 Chamber Comments on Summer 2024 AMHS Schedule
	11-12-24 Email from Kelly through Mayor re easement request
	11-13-24 Email from Hawxhurst & Guard regarding economic development p'tax exemptions
	11-13-24 Email from N Casciano regarding City buget

	Ord 1223-all
	ADPED02.tmp
	Memorandum

	ADP8323.tmp
	File two originals of this Application for any and each property for which you are seeking an economic development property tax exemption or deferral. The Application must be filed with the City Clerk no later than January 15 of the year the exemption...
	GUIDELINES AND CRITERIA FOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTIONS
	REFERENCES
	CMC 5.06.020 Applications – Initial Review:
	EXEMPTIONS
	Single-Family Residential
	The Single-Family Residential Exemption is an eight-year exemption from the property taxes owed on the first one hundred fifty thousand dollars of the assessed value of improvements for the construction of single-family homes to include standalone hom...
	OR
	The Single-Family Residential Exemption is a five-year exemption of 100 percent of the taxes owed on the assessed value of improvements for the construction of single-family homes to include standalone homes and townhomes.  If granted, the exemption g...
	Affordable Housing
	The Affordable Housing Exemption is an exemption of 100 percent of the property taxes owed on the assessed value of the improvements under the circumstances and for the durations detailed below.  If granted, the exemption goes into effect upon substan...
	Multifamily Residential
	The Multifamily Residential Exemption is an exemption of 100 percent of the property taxes owed on the assessed value of improvements under the circumstances and for the durations detailed below.  If granted, the exemption goes into effect upon substa...
	Mixed-Use Development
	The Mixed-Use Development Exemption is an exemption of 100 percent of the property taxes owed on the assessed value of improvements for the construction of mixed-use development for a period of fifteen years.  If granted, the exemption goes into effec...
	Commercial Development
	The Commercial Development Exemption is an exemption of 100 percent of the property taxes owed on the assessed value of improvements for new commercial or industrial construction for a period of ten years.  If granted, the exemption goes into effect u...
	Rehabilitation
	The Rehabilitation Exemption is an exemption of 100 percent of the property taxes owed on the assessed value of improvements to blighted commercial or residential properties.  The exemption requires the redevelopment of a parcel, in the form of either...

	PROCEDURES FOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION
	City of Cordova

	OFFICIAL USE ONLY
	ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION
	Cordova Municipal Code Section 5.07.060

	SECTION 1 – APPLICANT NAME AND MAILING ADDRESS
	SECTION 2 – PROPERTY OWNER
	SECTION 3 – CONTACT PERSON
	SECTION 4 – EXACT LOCATION FOR WHICH EXEMPTION IS SOUGHT
	SECTION 6 – COMMENCEMENT OF CONSTRUCTION
	SECTION 7 – PLANNED COMPLETION
	Date you plan to complete construction and/or qualify for a certificate of occupancy:
	SECTION 8 – TYPE OF DEVELOPMENT
	SECTION 9 – LENGTH AND AMOUNT OF EXEMPTION
	SECTION 10 – OTHER CONSIDERATIONS FOR EXEMPTION DETERMINATION
	SECTION 11 – RECORDS AND CERTIFICATES
	All inspection records and certificates obtained for the development or redevelopment of the Property are described here, and provided by Applicant as Attachment 1 to this Application:
	SECTION 12 – OCCUPANCY
	All listings, leases, and occupancy reports showing how Applicant qualifies for exemptions requiring proof of occupancy shall be provided by Applicant as Attachment 2 to this Application.
	CONTINUING PERFORMANCE:
	DATE OF APPLICATION:
	CITY ASSESSOR’S USE ONLY

	Maximum Fifteen-Year Exemption
	Maximum Twelve-Year Exemption
	Maximum Eight-Year Exemption
	Multifamily housing consisting of four units or more, with at least 25 percent of units providing three bedrooms or more, offered for rent as affordable units for duration of exemption.
	Multifamily housing consisting of four units or more, with at least 25 percent of units offered for rent as affordable units for duration of exemption. 
	Multifamily housing of any kind (duplex, triplex, condominiums, apartments) offered for rent at market rates for duration of exemption. No requirement to establish below market rate rents. 
	Twelve-Year Exemption
	Eight-Year Exemption
	Five-Year Exemption
	Construction of multifamily housing in excess of eight units, to include condominiums and apartments.  Seventy-five percent of units must be some combination of owner-occupied and offered on a long-term rental basis (minimum 12-month lease) for the duration of the exemption. 
	Construction of multifamily housing of fourplexes to eightplexes. Seventy-five percent of units must be owner-occupied or offered on a long-term rental basis (minimum 12-month lease) for the duration of the exemption.
	Construction of one or more duplexes or provision/installation of a new construction trailer home in an existing trailer home park. In either instance, the property must be some combination of owner-occupied, and/or offered on a long-term rental basis (minimum 12-month lease) for the duration of the exemption.
	The recipient of an economic development property tax exemption shall complete and submit this report to the City Clerk on or before January 15 of each year for which the exemption is in effect.
	OFFICIAL USE ONLY
	SECTION 1 – APPLICANT NAME AND MAILING ADDRESS
	SECTION 2 – PROPERTY OWNER
	SECTION 3 –EXACT LOCATION OF PROPERTY
	SECTION 5 – REAL PROPERTY
	SECTION 6 – OCCUPANCY
	SECTION 7 – DATE OF ANNUAL REPORT



	Ord 1224s-all
	ADP526B.tmp
	PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT
	1. Purchase and Sale.  Seller hereby agrees to sell, assign and convey to Purchaser, and Purchaser hereby agrees to purchase from Seller, all of Seller’s right, title and interest in and to that certain real Property located in the Cordova Recording D...
	2. The Purchase Price.
	(a) The purchase price for the Property is One Hundred Twenty Thousand Dollars and 00/100 Cents ($120,000.00) (the “Purchase Price”) and shall be paid to Seller by Purchaser at the Closing (as that term is defined in Section 10 below) as follows:
	(1) A One Thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($1,000) non-refundable deposit received by Seller on _________________ (the “Initial Deposit”).  The Initial Deposit shall be applied to the payment of the Purchase Price at Closing, but in no event will it be re...
	(2) The balance of One Hundred Nineteen Thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($119,000.00), together with all costs incurred by the City in connection with the sale of the Property, including Closing Costs, payable at Closing.


	3. Title.
	(a) Within ten (10) days following the Effective Date, Seller shall order from Alyeska Title Guaranty Agency, Inc. (“Title Company”), a preliminary title report pertaining to the Property (the “Commitment”), together with legible (to the extent availa...
	(b) Within fifteen (15) days after the delivery of the Commitment by Seller or the Title Company, Purchaser shall notify Seller in writing of any title exceptions identified in the Commitment of which Purchaser disapproves.  Any exception not disappro...

	4. No Warranties.  Purchaser shall purchase the Property based on Purchaser’s own prior investigation and examination of the Property (or Purchaser’s election not to do so).  Purchaser agrees, represents, and warrants that except as expressly containe...
	5. Representations, Warranties and Covenants of Purchaser.  In addition to any other representations, warranties, and covenants contained herein, Purchaser represents and warrants to Seller that the following matters are true and correct as of the exe...
	(a) This Agreement is, and all the documents executed by Purchaser which are to be delivered to Seller at the Closing will be, duly authorized, executed, and delivered by Purchaser, and is and will be legal, valid, and binding obligations of Purchaser...

	6. Conditions Precedent to Closing.
	(a) The following shall be conditions precedent to Seller’s obligation to consummate the purchase and sale transaction contemplated herein (the “Seller’s Conditions Precedent”):
	(1) Purchaser shall not have terminated this Agreement in accordance with Section 3, Section 12 or Section 13 of this Agreement within the time periods described in said Sections.
	(2) Purchaser shall have delivered to Escrow Agent, prior to or at the Closing, for disbursement as directed hereunder, all cash or other immediately available funds due from Purchaser in accordance with this Agreement.
	(3) There shall be no uncured breach of any of Purchaser’s representations or warranties set forth in Section 6, or any other breach of this Agreement, as of the date of Closing.
	(4) Purchaser shall have delivered to Escrow Agent the items described in Section 8.
	(5) The timely performance by Purchaser of each and every obligation imposed upon Purchaser hereunder.

	(b) The following shall be conditions precedent to Purchaser’s obligation to consummate the purchase and sale transaction contemplated herein (the “Purchaser’s Conditions Precedent”):
	(1) Purchaser shall not have terminated this Agreement in accordance with Section 4, Section 12 or Section 13 of this Agreement within the time periods described in said Sections.
	(2) Title Company shall be committed to issue, at the Closing, an owner’s policy of title insurance (the “Title Policy”), insuring Purchaser’s interest in the Property, dated the day of the Closing, with liability in the amount of the Purchase Price, ...
	(3) Seller shall have delivered the items described in Section 7.
	(4) The timely performance by Seller of each and every obligation imposed upon Seller hereunder.


	7. Seller’s Closing Deliveries.  At or prior to the Closing, Seller shall deliver to Escrow Agent the following:
	(a) A Quitclaim Deed with Right of Reentry and First Refusal in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B, executed by Seller conveying the Property to Purchaser (the “Deed”).
	(b) A closing statement prepared by the Title Company itemizing and approving all receipts and disbursements made in connection with Closing.
	(c) Any other documents, instruments or agreements reasonably necessary to effectuate the transaction contemplated by this Agreement.

	8. Purchaser’s Closing Deliveries.  At or prior to the Closing, Purchaser shall deliver to Escrow Agent the following:
	(a) The balance of the Purchase Price, payable as provided in Section 2, together with such other sums as Escrow Agent shall require to pay Closing costs, prorations, reimbursements and adjustments as set forth in Section 9 and Section 11, in immediat...
	(b) Any other documents, instruments or agreements reasonably necessary to effectuate the transaction contemplated by this Agreement and/or as may be required by the Title Company.

	9. Prorations and Adjustments.  The following shall be prorated and adjusted between Seller and Purchaser as of the day of the Closing, except as otherwise specified:
	(a) General real estate, personal property and ad valorem taxes and assessments, and any improvement or other bonds encumbering the Property, for the current tax year for the Property.  Purchaser is not responsible for delinquent real estate taxes, pe...
	(b) Utility charges, if any.  Purchaser acknowledges and agrees that Seller shall be entitled to all refunds of utility deposits with respect to the Property and that such amounts are not to be assigned to Purchaser in connection with the sale of the ...

	10. Closing.  The purchase and sale contemplated herein shall close on or before one hundred twenty (120) days after the Effective Date (the “Closing”) or on such other specific date and time mutually agreed to by the parties.  As used herein, the ter...
	11. Closing Costs.  Purchaser shall pay the fee for recording the Deed, the premium for the Title Policy and Lender’s Policy, and for all fees and costs Seller incurred to third parties in any way relating to the purchase and sale transaction involvin...
	12. Risk of Loss.  If prior to the Closing, any portion of the Property is subject to a taking, or eminent domain proceedings are commenced, by public authority (other than Seller) against all or any portion of the Property, Purchaser shall have the r...
	13. Default.
	(a) No party shall be deemed to be in default hereunder unless such party fails to cure an alleged default within ten (10) days after receipt from the other party of written notice thereof; provided, however, that (i) if such alleged default is not su...
	(b) In the event of a default by Seller hereunder, Purchaser’s remedies shall be limited to (i) terminating this Agreement by written notice to Seller, in which event the Initial Deposit shall be returned to Purchaser and neither party shall have any ...
	(c) In the event of a default by Purchaser hereunder, Seller shall be entitled, to terminate this Agreement by written notice to Purchaser, in which event, the non-refundable Initial Deposit shall be retained by Seller as liquidated damages; thereafte...

	14. Escrow.
	(a) Instructions.  Within five (5) business days after execution of this Agreement, Seller shall deposit a copy of this Agreement executed by both Purchaser and Seller with Escrow Agent.  This Agreement, together with such further instructions, if any...
	(b) Deposits into Escrow.  Seller shall make its deliveries into escrow in accordance with Section 7.  Purchaser shall make their deliveries into escrow in accordance with Section 8.  Escrow Agent is hereby authorized to close the escrow only if and w...
	(c) Close of Escrow.  Provided that Escrow Agent shall not have received written notice in a timely manner from Purchaser or Seller of the failure of any condition to the Closing or of the termination of the escrow, and if and when Seller and Purchase...
	(1) Deliver to Seller the Purchase Price, including all Closing Costs, after satisfying the prorations and adjustments to be paid by Seller pursuant to Section 9, if any.
	(2) Deliver to Purchaser the Quitclaim Deed by causing it to be recorded in the Official Records of the Cordova Recording District, Third Judicial District, State of Alaska and immediately upon recording delivering to Purchaser a conformed copy of the...
	(3) Deliver to Purchaser any funds deposited by Purchaser, and any interest earned thereon, in excess of the amount required to be paid by Purchaser hereunder.
	(4) Deliver the Title Policy issued by Title Company to Purchaser.


	15. Indemnification.
	(a) General Indemnification.  Purchaser shall defend, indemnify, and hold the Seller and its authorized representatives, agents, officers, and employees harmless from and against any and all actions, suits, claims, demands, penalties, fines, judgments...
	(b) Environmental Release and Indemnification. The Seller makes no representation or warranty whatsoever, whether express, implied, or statutory, regarding the presence or absence of any Hazardous Material (as hereafter defined) on the Property.  Purc...

	16. Development Plan and Right of Reentry.
	(a) Site Development Plan; Reentry. In connection with its proposal to acquire the Property, Purchaser proposed and has agreed to limit use of the Premises solely to constructing and maintaining the project detailed in the site development plan (the “...
	(b) Exercise of Right of Reentry. Purchaser agrees that it must substantially complete construction of the project set forth in the Site Development Plan attached as Exhibit C by a date that is five (5) years after the Effective Date of this Agreement...
	(c) Exercise of Right of Reentry. To exercise its Right of Reentry, Seller shall deliver to Purchaser (or its permitted successor, assigns, or transferees) a written notice providing Purchaser thirty (30) additional days (the “Reentry Notice Period”) ...
	(d) Termination of Right of Reentry. Seller’s Right of Reentry shall terminate and be no further force or effect the in the event that (i) Purchaser (or its permitted successor, assigns, or transferees) substantially completes the redevelopment of the...
	(e) Purchaser Acknowledgement. Purchaser acknowledges and agrees that the Right of Reentry granted by this Section of the Agreement is a reasonable restriction on alienation of the Property, which is given as security for performance of post-closing o...

	17. Right of First Refusal.  Purchaser covenants and agrees to acquire the Property subject to Seller’s right of first refusal, as provided in this Section.  Purchaser further covenants and agrees that Purchaser shall not sell, transfer, convey, or di...
	(a) Right of First Refusal.  Seller shall have a right of first refusal subject to the same conditions provided in this Agreement.   Any sale, conveyance, transfer, or other disposition made in violation of Seller’s right of first refusal shall be voi...
	(b) Exercise of Right of First Refusal.
	(i) Purchaser may accept an offer for the sale, conveyance, transfer, or other disposition of the Property only if the offer is made subject to the Seller’s right of first refusal herein. Immediately upon acceptance of an offer for the sale, transfer,...
	(ii) If after execution of the Purchase Offer, the Purchaser and third-party amend the Purchase Offer, the Purchaser shall present a copy of the Purchase Offer as amended (“Amended Purchase Offer”) to Seller in accordance with Section 17(b)(i) above, ...

	(c) Sale or Disposal by Grantees.  If Seller does not timely exercise its right of first refusal or declines to exercise its right of first refusal, Purchaser may then sell or otherwise dispose of the Property to the third party on the same terms and ...
	(d) Waiver.  If Seller does not timely exercise its right of first refusal, or if Seller declines to exercise its rights in response to a particular Purchase Offer or Amended Purchase Offer, if applicable, and provides Purchaser with written notice of...

	18. General Provisions.
	(a) Each individual executing this Agreement hereby represents and warrants that he or she has the capacity set forth on the signature pages hereof with full power and authority to bind the party on whose behalf he or she is executing this Agreement t...
	(b) Time is of the essence in the performance of and compliance with each of the provisions and conditions of this Agreement.  In the computation of any period of time provided for in this Agreement or by law, the day of the act or event from which su...
	(c) Seller represents and warrants to Purchaser, and Purchaser represents and warrants to Seller, that there is no broker, finder, or other intermediary of any kind with whom such party has dealt in connection with the transaction contemplated hereby,...
	(d) This Agreement, including all exhibits attached hereto, constitutes the entire agreement and understanding of the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and there are no other prior or contemporaneous written or oral agreements, undert...
	(e) This Agreement may be amended or modified only by a written instrument executed by all of the parties hereto.
	(f) No waiver of any condition or provision of this Agreement by any party shall be valid unless in writing signed by such party.  No such waiver shall be deemed or construed as a waiver of any other or similar provision or of any future event, act, o...
	(g) If any provision of this Agreement is deemed unenforceable in whole or part, such provision shall be limited to the extent necessary to render the same valid or shall be deemed excised from this Agreement and replaced by a valid provision as close...
	(h) Headings of articles and sections herein are for convenience of reference only and shall not be construed as part of this Agreement.
	(i) This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and permitted assigns.
	(j) This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Alaska.
	(k) This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original but all of which, taken together, shall constitute a single instrument.
	(l) In no event shall this Agreement be construed more strongly against any one person solely because such person or its representative acted as draftsman hereof, it being acknowledged by the parties hereto that both have been represented by competent...
	(m) Any notice, request, demand, instruction or other document to be given or served hereunder or under any document or instrument executed pursuant hereto shall be in writing and shall be sent by United States registered or certified mail, return rec...
	(n) The parties agree to execute such instructions to Escrow Agent and Title Company and such other instruments and to do such further acts as may be reasonably necessary to carry out the provisions of this Agreement on terms mutually acceptable to Pu...
	(o) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, this Agreement shall not be deemed or construed to make the parties hereto partners or joint ventures, or to render either party liable for any of the debts or obligations of the other, it...
	(a) Site Development Plan; Reentry. In connection with its proposal to acquire the Property, Grantee proposed and has agreed to limit use of the Premises solely to constructing and maintaining the project detailed in the site development plan (the “Si...
	(b) Exercise of Right of Reentry. To exercise its Right of Reentry, Grantor shall deliver to Grantee (or its permitted successor, assigns, or transferees) a written notice providing Grantee thirty (30) additional days (the “Reentry Notice Period”) to ...
	(c) Termination of Right of Reentry. Grantor’s Right of Reentry shall terminate and be of no further force or effect in the event that (i) Grantee (or its permitted successor, assigns, or transferees) substantially completes the redevelopment of the P...
	(d) Grantee Acknowledgement. By signing below, Grantee acknowledges and agrees that the Right of Reentry granted by Section 1 of this Deed is a reasonable restriction on alienation of the Property, which is given as security for performance of post-cl...
	i. Grantee may accept an offer for the sale, conveyance, transfer, or other disposition of the Property only if the offer is made subject to the Grantor’s right of first refusal herein. Immediately upon acceptance of an offer for the sale, transfer, c...
	ii. If after execution of the Purchase Offer, the Grantee and third-party amend the Purchase Offer, the Grantee shall present a copy of the Purchase Offer as amended (“Amended Purchase Offer”) to Grantor in accordance with Section 1(b)(i) above, and G...




	Ord 1225-all
	Discussion of city comments access easement item-all
	ADPE4FD.tmp
	From: Lilyhorn, Savannah A (DNR) <savannah.lilyhorn@alaska.gov> Sent: Friday, November 1, 2024 2:46:38 PM To: City Planner <planning@cityofcordova.net>; David Allison <mayor@cityofcordova.net>; Sam Greenwood <citymanager@cityofcordova.net> Cc: Dodd, E...


	pacipcalseaol
	novdec.pdf
	November 24
	12-24.pdf
	December 24


	11-20-24.pdf
	lists


	ADP8928.tmp
	F. Communications by and Petitions from Visitors
	N. New & Miscellaneous Business
	O. Audience Participation
	P. Council Comments




